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Entrovuction.

I.

Tue ArcexTing GovEnnMeENT has ordered the publication of the
documents and papers found in the campaiguing desk of
Marshal Solano Lopez, President of Paraguay, on the 27th
December, 1868. Many more, of equal importance with these,
were lost in the confusion consequent upon the fight, and some
are omitted as being redundant, although they contain data of
great utility for the historian.

The depositions made by Paraguayan officers taken prisoners,
by Argentines, and by several foreigners, which are also added,
are incomplete ; yet, in as far as they are genuine and sponta-
neous, they may serve as indications, although they cannot be
adduced as proofs. To make the proof complete a deponent—
in a case like this—must confess to his being guilty, ecither as
accomplice or participator, a confession which few are willing
to make. Those whose duty it is to execute the orders ofa
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tyrant like Lopez can seldom escape sharing the responsibility
of their deeds.

The publication of these papers will enable all the nations
that have shown an interest in the Paraguayan war to form an
estimate of the morality and justice of the war waged by the
Allies.

The correspondence of Mr. Washburn, the North American
Minister, took the world by surprise, when it was known on
such high authority that sympathy bad been bestowed on the
worst of tyrants, under the impression that Lopez was defending
the honor of his people, whilst in reality he had only issued
forth to rob and conquer his neighbors, without any previous
declaration of war, and afterwards refused (heroically sheltering
himself behind trenches, made at points that were inaccessible)
to give any satisfaction to the aggrieved parties. It may truly
be said that Europe, in the Paraguayan question, was innocent
of its own opinion. The lengthy note of the Paraguayan Minister
in Paris shows how public upinion was formed in Europe,thanks
to the falsehoods spread through the Paraguayan Legations, the
statements of newspapers which, for pecuniary considerations,
had become violent partisans, and the pamphlets and wise
suggestions of an Argentine, to whom the Paraguayan Mioister
pays the following well-earned tribute :—

Dr. Alberdi has undertaken the defence of Paraguay with the greatest
disintorestedneas, and with an ability which unfortunately nome of us, Y.E's
~wnnts, who have the honor of serving our country in Europe, possces Lo 50 eminent
a degroe.

Dr. Alberdi is an authority in the questions whose issue is now sought by force
of arms in the River Plato.

This gentleman doubts whether Y.E. is folly aware of his true and sincere
attachm: nt to the cause sustained by Y.E., with so much glory and success; be
doubts more particularly whether Mr. Barreiro has informed Y.E. minutely as to
his dispositions snd active proc odings in favor of Pursguay. If Dr. Albesdi
abetained during the lstter part of Mr. Barreiro's mission from taking any active
and direct stepa in favor of Parsguay and the Government of the Republic, it was
due 1o the strange disposition he romarked in the youthful agent. Now s most
cordial understunding cxists betweon us.

GREGORIO BENTITEZ, Paraguayan Minister in Pards,
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. Not 50 in republican America, both South and North. Ever
since the begiuning of the war public opinion, both in the United
States and among South American nations, has been hestile to
the Allies, and has rebelled against every proof that tended to
show how unjust were its appreciations.

The less obstinate granted at most that the Argentine Republic
!ud been right at the beginning of the war, as long as it limited
mclr_ to driving back an invasion of its territory, which had in
no wise been provoked; but, by a process of reasoning that
fortunately has no parallel in history, it was considered that as
soou as the invaded territory had been re-conquered the war
ought to have been abandoned, and no excuse was even admitted
for the alliance entered into with Brazil, which also had been
invaded and plundered.

Seldo.m ‘has history presented an instance of such perfect
unanimity on the part of all nations in favor of injustice and
against those who only defend their own rights.

Time and historical criticism set straight such crooked notions
sooner or later, but not before they have produced a certain
amount of mischief.

W.ho has not felt angry against Napoleon for having, according
to his contemporaries, broken the peace of Amiens, or against
Grouchy for kaving abandoned him at Waterloo? Time has,
nevertheless, proved that England caused the rupture, and that
Grouchy did not know, because by neglect he was not informed
in time, that a new battle made the victory of Mont Saint Jean
doubtful.

It is, nevertheless, always instructive snd curious to know
the motives of such errors, and in this instance it is not super-
fluous briefly to allude to them.

In the United States the motive is to be found in the want of
proper information respecting this part of the world.

The libraries of the Old World countain several works in
English, published at the beginuning of the century, and giving
a description of these countries.
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The narrative of Renger and Longchamps, Robertson’s Letters
on Paraguay and on Francia’s ruthless dictatorship, gave for a
time lustre to the country which had earned the name of American
China, and to the gloomy Dictator who gave that character
to his country. But half a century of silence had effaced
Paraguay from the memory of distant nations, and even its
neighbors on the same Continent did not know the beings that
called themselves Paraguayans, since these were never te be
seen beyond the limits of their own territory.

A visible sign, considered unerring, made public opinion in
the United States decide as to which side was right. The
Paraguayan Nepublic was defending itself heroically against the
onslaught of the Brazilion Empire, and a verdict was given
without calling for evidence and without appeal.

The heroic resistance of so small a Republic against Allies so
powerful,'created among all nations that sympathy which is ever
felt for the weak, the suffering, and those who defend their own
homes ; and when public opinion allows itself to be affected by
these generous feelings it neither looks closely to facts nor stops
to scrutinize dctails.

Yet there was no lack of heroism on the part of the Allies
in attacking impregnable fortresses surrounded by marshes and
primitive forests, and in transperting soldiers, provisions,
horses, and warlike implements to a distance of more than 400
leagues. There was some heroism in overcoming all this, after
four years hard and sanguinary fighting.

In South America, on the other hand, another feeling tended
to embitter more and more the public spirit.

We need not take into ascount the common prejudice against
the monarchical formof the empire, strengthened by the gigantic
struggle that had been going on in Mexico to save republican insti-
tutions, so deeply compromised, nor compare the difference of
languages between the descendants of Portuguese and Spaniards,
arcompanied by the traditional hatred transplanted from the
Peninsula, and studiously cultivated in America from the Orinoco
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to the: Uruguay, during a strife of three centuries with the
Empire, whose confines touch almost all the American Republics,
The true cause of the antipathy against the Allies, without
distinction of republicans or imiperialists, proceeded from the
fact that the treaty of alliance fixed certain territorial limits to
Paraguay, narrowing apparently those that had been formerly
recognised, or pretended as such, by Paraguay; and this was
taken as an indication that the true object and motive of the
war was the traditional and persisting Portuguese policy,
inherited by its descendants, of increasing the Brazilian
territory, a policy which threatened, like the invading waves of
a sea beating against the shore, to dismember piecemeal the
Republics of Spanish origin, and enable the Brazilian map to
extend as far as the River Plate to the South and the Andes to
the West.

This was the sacret cause of the aversion against the Allies
felt throughout South America, from Venezuela to Chile, and
hence followed that all ranged themselves against justice itself,
and were led into frequent and unanimoas publie manifestations,
which were even countenanced by governments.

If Chile was less interested in this question of unoccupied
territories, a question of which Paraguay figured as the
champion, it 'had, on the other hand, a motive in its proximity
to the Argentine Republic, and in the refusal of the latter to be
dragged into a participation of the semi-war with Spain, which
had lost the character of an American war, given it by the
oocupation of the Chinchas Islands, and which at first the
Atgentine Republic bad accepted as such with decision. '

The very mystery that surrounded Paraguay had no small
share in keeping alive the sympathies in its favor, which the
above motives had raised. The vulgar prose of our political
squabbles tends to estrange all interest from us, who are so little
known to the world. For those who wateh us from afar, our
prominent position can be sumwed up in oneé proposition,
anarchy or war.
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Paraguay could be supposed to be endowed with all the gifts
we so anxiously longed for ourselves. For some it was a young
and vigorous Republic, for many the patriarchal Eden described
in the Cartas Edificantes, and Lopez, another Kosciuzko, who
had risen to save this new Poland, doomed to dismemberment.

IT.

The cyrtain has, however, been raised, and in the presence
of a nation decimated, a country destroyed, forming the wind up
of the most cruel war, without excepting the civil war of the
United States, that has occurred in this century, it is well to
pause borrified and explain the causes that have strengthened
the tyrant, and brought about the sacrifice of an entire popula-
tion, since those who have survived of more than ten years of
age, not including the prisoners taken by the Allied armies, do
not exceed a few thousands.

On the day following the fight of the 27th December, it was
not the the mounds of corpsescf the combatants in decomposition
that disturbed the sleep of the conquerors, but the cry of
children from ten to twelve years, whose shrill voice, peculiar
to their tender age, came from she military hospitals.

One hundred and fifty thousand Paraguayans have perished,
out of a population which did not exceed 600,000 inhabitants,
and of which some believe (Dr. Stewart among others) that not
more : than 80,000, between Wwomen and children, survive.
Women, too, have been decimated, by disease, forced to
agricultural labor, and to being moved about and driven from one
extreme of the territory to the other, without any regard for
social rank or condition.

Democracy, with the exception of slaves (slavery still exists

in Paraguay), was more exacting there, owing to the tyrant’s
jealousy of the white families, and of wealthy and intelligent
people, who could question the justice of his cause.
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Whence came this astounding prodigy of the self-denying
obedience of an entire people, unanimous in the one feeling of
fighting until all were swept away? Lope2’s proclamations
always insisted on this; and what elsewhere would have been
simply a rhetorical figure has been in this instance a terrible
reality. We can only cursorily investigate the primary causes of
so strange a phenomenon.

The European spirit, that which is civilised and Christian,
seeks in its own vocabulary and in its own feelings an explana-
tion of these facts. Bat the truth can only be reached through
an exactly contrary process, by showing why and how long
these feelings had been wanting, and point out the new and
strange forms which, under extraordinary circumstances, they
had assumed.

II.

Paraguay lies amid secular forests, slone, isolated, at a
distance of 500 leagues from the coast of the Atlantic, and it is
now half a century since it was cut off from the rest of mankind.
None of the ideas or institutions that for the last century have
dawned on the earth had penetrated into Paraguay, and yet it
is in this very century that all the great social changes have
taken place in Europe.  Paraguay wasa closed book when the
Lopez family inherited it, and they took up the key that locked
it and that lay near the corpse of old Francia, who, in his turn,
had likewise received it sealed up and shut off from all contact
with new ideas, at the hands of the Jesuit Fathers, who colonised
it now two centuries ago. Such is the history of Paraguay. It
is, morally, what Australia is physically, a fragment of the Old
World.

The popular masses impress to nations their character, until
civilisation, coming from above, penetrates and modifies them.
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The singular and strange civil, political, and military organi-
sation which Paraguay still preserves is exclusive to it in
Spanish America ; its origin is not to be sought in the nature of
the descendants of Europeans, whom Dr. Francia persecuated
unrelentingly, but 1n that into which the Jesunits moulded the
indigenous Guarani race.

Whether it was as an experiment of the communist doctrines
imbibed by the Jesuits from the Acts of the Apostles or the
Epistles of St. Paul, and which exercised such ideal fascination
on religious fanatics, or whether due to the necessity of
governing neofites rescued from a savage life, Paraguay has
been the scene of the mast extensive attempt made in modern
times of a new system of society and goverument of nations.
The Jesuit gathered around him, in the luxuriant spots where a
mission was started, a PrLock, in the true and figured sense of
the expression, Guarani Indians by hundreds of families, without
any government of their own, without property, and without
traditions. His task above all was to make them Christians, and
for this end make them live, and civilise them to a certain
degree. The Jesuit was the raTHER, that is to say, the soul, the
centre, the teacher, the master; the guardian of this flock, that
had neither rights, nor land, nor home, nor government. o
obey, to learn, and to ¢omply, was the whole code of this peopleon
the road of formation. To work was to obey, to marry wasto
obey, to exist wasto obey. The Jesuit represented God and the
king ; and a Jesuit led them to their work, to church, or to war
against Mamelukes (the word used to express Christian batred),
or against the savages, their infidel relations. Property due to
the work in common of the mission belonged to the state; the
mission for the mission itself, and not for the individual.
Commerce was a right unknown to the Indian, who had never
practised it, and to the colonist, who knew no other world
outside the colony. A system of reciprocal espionage was
enforced, tale bearing was made a virtue and enforced, while
the confessionary became a moral, religious, and political police
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in these flock-like societies. In’' this the Jesuits made no
innovation upon what the Inquisition ordained against heretics
in Spain.

The distinctive characteristic of the Guarani organisation is,
therefore, the deification of the chief of the state, whether he be
called father, dictator, or president, and the chief bond of union
reciprocal espionage. Dr. Francia, with the ideas imbued in a
college of Jesuits at the end of last century in Cordoba, found
such a flock without a father; he undertook to guide it, and use
its religious character for political ends. The geographical
insulation of Paraguay centributed to the success of this
innocent and Christian scheme.

Closing the only eatrance to the country, by the river, and
thus cutting off his countrymen from all contact with the
outward world, at a time when the other Spanish colonies
were fighting in the battlefield to secure their independence;
the gloomy Dictator directed all his energies to Guaranise that
part of the population that descended from Spanish Europeans,
and to exterminate the few Spauniards (250) that might be an
obstacle to him. Thirly years was he engaged in carrying on
this work, through terror, perpetunl imprisonmeant, confiscation,
and even marringe, of which he availed himself for the purpose
of mixing the races, or in order to humiliate the pride of the
Spaniards.

Has any one scanned with his imagination how far a powerful
mind can influence a people segregated for generations
from all contact with the world, among whom there are
neither books, press, nor commerce, and who are debarred
from the possibility of secking refuge in other countries.

The Romans could at one time escape and seek an asylum in
the territory of barbarian kings; and, therefore, to be exiled
was a capital punishment, the efficacy of which was felt by those
who became thereby dead to political life, although their body
survived. But when all the world was Roman, not even this
plank of salvation was left for any who might have incurred the
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Emperor’s displeasure. Paraguay, by its geographical confor-
mation, realised the same state of things as Imperial Rome,
since nobody could escape from the Dictator’s authority, how-
ever restrained the limit of his jurisdiction. During almost half
a century no other Paraguayans were known in the River Plate
except the few who were left outside when, in 1811, the gates
were shut which closed the country to all foreign commerce
and trade.

In 1860, the work of re-modelling the Paragnayan spirit was
brought to a clese. The blind obedience which admitted of no
reply, and the absorption of the individual into the state, had
grown into a second nature of the Paraguayan, and, after fifty
years of insulation, the despotism of the ruler for the time being
became the esse ‘ce and recognised perfection of government.

An insignificant fact will give a just appreciation of this. In
1845, a Correntino, resident in Paraguay, wished to send a
present to Corrientes of a small barrel of cana. Having gone
through the necessary preliminaries in the custom-house, and
finding that the duty for exportation was exhorbitantly bigh, bhe
abandoned the idea, and, as the application for a permit was
useless to him, tore it up, in the presence of the head of the
custom-house. The latter, as if he had seen somebody taking
poison by mistake, uttered a cry of horror, and, ordering the
Correntino to be arrested, immediately reported his having torn
up the paper bearing the arms of the state (stamped paper).
Two hours later the Correntino was shot for such gross want of
respect.

There 15 no lack of proof to substantiate similar facts,
Such are, however, the results of the Guarani civilisation,
either through error, necessity, or forethought.

De Moussy has collected in a pamphlet all the opinions
emitted by the principal minds of Europe upon the Jesuitical
experiment in Paraguay, adducing in its favor the testimony
of David cum Sibilla, Montesquicu, Voltaire, Rousseau, of
Catholics as well as Protestants. One single voice differed
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from this universal chorus of laudations, that of the only one who
saw with his own eyes this splendid monstruocsity—the wise
Azara, who, even as far back as 1800, apticipated all the horrors
and hollowness of that strange experiment.

In the missions, during 150 years, no Spanish was taught;
the dress was not that of Europeans. By royal ordinance it was
forbidden to Spaniards to enter these oasis of morality. Their
only wisible result now is the sifilis that rots the very bones of
the Guarani race.

The mission, for a long time, ignored the authority of the
king, except through the heads of the mission. The war of the
Jesuits, in 1772, became necessary, in order to put an end to
this imperium in imperio. The import and export trade was
transacted on the company’s account. '

The Guarani armies were commanded by Jesuit fathers, and
municipalities, justices of peace. and all other civil authorities,
were mere automata that were moved by their direction.

All was happiness and prosperity in this enchanted country,
according to the writings and the history of the Order.  But
the general result has been that, whilst the secular civil coloni~
sation, imperfect as it was under the Spaniards, has prodaced
Buenos Ayres, Lima, Santiago, Mexico, and a thousand towus and
cities, upon which, through independence, were founded civilised
states, the missions vanished at the first breath of adversity,
leaving behind gorgeous temples, amidst vast orange groves,
abandoned to nature, and inoculating the most frightful tyranny
witnessed in modern times, with a civil Pope in Dr. Francia, and
in Lopez a mighty destroyer, who has exterminated the last
remaios of Paraguay.

Iv.

The public spirit being thus ripe, Solano Lopez, yet in
his teens, was sent by his father, the Dictator, as Minister
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Plenipotentiary to France ; and this youth, nurtured in the ideas
entertained now two centuries ago by the princes of Europe,
before the revolutionary spirit had taught them to consider
themselves as belonging to the same race as their subjects, saw
civilised nations, wealth, palaces, and emperors, and for six
years enjoyed all the pleasures of civilised life. He brought
with him, or knew where to send for afterwards, engineers,
mechanics, artisans,” and in ten years his father, who was a
Phillip to this Alexander, kept secretly collecting cannons and
raising fortresses, whilst railwaysand telegraphs were projected
and carried into execution.

A fleet of war steamers (twelve) carried on the traffic between
Paraguay and the commercial towns of the River Plate, since the
export trade was a Government monopoly, and the navigation of
the rivers was maintained on a war footing.

It was pretended that Brazil had forcibly imposed upou the
Government of Lopez’s father a treaty, and ever since then
(twelve years ago) slow but strenuous preparations were made
to enable Paraguay to be soon at evens with Brazil. Huomaita
being fortificd, the advantages of Angostura ascertained by
English engineers, and Paraguay declared impregnable by the
Hungarian Visner, a grand idea shone like a revelation in the
mind of Lopez’s son.

Matto Grosso lies behind Paraguay, and is inaccessible to
Brazil uuless by passing under the cannons of the fortress of
Huamaitd, the construction of which had been recommended by
the Brazilians themselves. A faction in Montevideo appealed to
the autocrat of Paraguay in order to resist Brazilian influence.
The two Argentine provinces of Corrientes and Entre Rios are
almost cut off in the midst of Paraguayan, Brazilian, and
Uruguayan territory. Matto Grosso could be easily conquered,
and by descending the river with an army of 50,000 men already
armed and equipped, and occupying the passes through

* Twenty English mechanics, acoording to Dr. Stewart, are at present in Ibicbry
mending same in Lopex's compulsory service.
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Corrientes and Entre Rios, he proposed tdking Uruguayana,
whence he could advance on Montevideo, as its liberator and
ally, planting the Paraguayan flag on the mount that gives it
its name.

Thus, after a campaign of two or three months, he could hope
to found an empire with the plunder of Brazil, the Argentine
Republie, and the Oriental Republic. The enterprise was
tempting, and the youthful conqueror able to undertake it.*

The world might probably have witnessed without surprise
one of the many reconstructions which the map of the different
nations is actually undergoing, even though it might not have
been slow in perceiving that, for the same causes, and with the
same results, an invasion of Northern barbarians, like that
which in the fourth century of our era destroyed -civilised
empires and republics, was being renewed in America, by which
the indigenous Guarani race, strong in its submission, in its
covetness, and its bravery, and under the command of a modern
Attila, poured down upon cities which were flourishing for their
commerce and for the progress of European civilisation, but
weak from sub-division into small states, into disunited pro-
vinces, into unscrupulous political parties, into classes and
fastes not yet amalgamated, into apathetic foreigners, and
into nations without natives.

The danger has been immense! Matto Grosso was taken;
Corrientes occupied ; Uruguaysna conquered; the Brazilian
squadron almost totally defeated in the Riachuelo. What was
wanting to complete the work ?  Intelligence !

A Brazilian admiral changed the fortunes of the day, by
boldly attacking with his ship the victorious Paraguayan fleet ;
Geuneral Paunero, with a handful of men, stopped the advance of
a Paraguayan army in Corrientes; General Flores exterminated

* A model of an imperial crown was lately found among some articles of
furnitare of regal magnificence, ordered by Lopes in Paris, and probably destined
to be put into use at his coronation. 7.
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an army corps detached in Yatay, without either reserves or
retreat.

The Emperor and General Mitre witnessed the surreander of
7,000 Paraguayans who, in compliance with the senseless orders
of Lopez, had occupied the town of Uruguayana, almost in the
rearguard of the Allied forces.

Owing to the precipitate abandonment of the easy conquest of
Corrientes, and once the illusion of a vast empire had van-
jshed, the problem was reduced for Lopez to a defence of
Humaita, in order to escape the punishment he so richly
deserved. This has been the heroism of the Paraguayan tyrant,
the same that has ever been displayed by bands of marauders
when obliged to take refuge in their last inaccessible dens,
amidst rugged mountains. The bandits of the Abruzzi, how-
ever, have not at their disposal 300 cannons, European
engineers, or a nation of helots, with which to show off their

heroism.
v.

We do not purpose giving here the history of this long war,
a war as ruinous to Paraguay as it has been prejudicial to the
Allies, who did not provoke it.

What we want to know are the secret springs that have kept
in arms a whole nation during four years of disasters (since only
the repulse of Curupaity can be reckoned as a victory), until
almost all have died, vld, adult. and children!

Dr. Francia’s efforts were directed into turning against
independent Argentines the hatred felt for the Mamelukes
(American Portuguese), and for the Spaniards who were
proscribed as corruptors of morals, a hatred which the indi-
genous races nourish instinctively against the white race and

foreigners.
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After forty years of seclusion, it was not difficalt
thr?ugh the calumnies and inventions of the &u‘:ai:oprm
notion that the Argentines and Brazilians, who composui the
Allied army, were all monsters, some ridiculous othersniggers
and all lfneful. The Semanario was Lopez’s or.gan and almou;
:;wg: his own work. The Semanario was an artlcl; of faith to-
I.':w tor:f::.ym, most of whom, we may here mention, know
But the very nature of Paraguayan institutions explains better
::1.: ‘:::e ;f l:‘hi:eg.: m’l:: Pn;--gn-ynn bas been c‘:meeivcd t;n
: : - :
the secret of his nbnegntlou:’ TRMFSOR 000, 106 B Ehin
In the first rough book of orders
1866, there is a list, occupying three ;::::f’:, ln::e:t::r:r:‘
many of them with a marginal note of the day on which the 4
were caught and shot. A few pages further on rhaps lz
abate an evil inherent in all armies, there is an (.’Irg:r of the
Day providing that for every deserter ina company his rigbt
and left rank and file should each receive twenty-five lashes
th:o::;ponl and the sergeant of the company respectfully lort;
::e Y- Thus, supposing there were only 1,000 deserters in
three subsequent years, 2,000 soldiers received their quota
of lasbes, and the sergeants and corporals their proportion of
:ny or forty lashes, ucoordlng. to the number of soldiers
eserted from their companies. What an honor to be a sergeant
in that army! As for the commissioned officer, he was laced
under arrest, and at the disposal of the Supu'me hr&erl
a deur'ter was heard to say, with a sigh, “Ah;l m o
companions, by this time they will have been shot "’ m
would lead one tosuppose thatof late the order had beoone more
severe, and shooting substituted for flogging. Thus, can the
resut:mce of that army be explained, in spite of innge; and the
certainty of defeat. 'Each soldier watched by five, and all and
each a spy upon one another’s movements. .
In the city of Asuncion, before its oceupation by the Allies
. B ;
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the vestiges of other purishments have been found. A great
pumber of houses, without a roof, others in ruins, many with
the doors and windows bfoken down. On enquiring the cause
of $0 much havoe, it turned out that it was the work of judicial
edicts, 'which, at Loper’s dictation, ordered the demolition of
the houses of deserters, or of citizens declared traitors, whose
wives, mothers, or children were thrown into prison unless
they gave up the delinquent.

Cblonel Martinez, the officer entrusted with the defence of
Humaita, and married into Lopez’s family, before hearing of
his wife’s death, stated in the War Office that the capital mistake
of the Allies bud consisted in not baving since the beginning
thrown a strong and large body of cavalry to the rear of
Humaita, and laid their hands on the women, because what
kept the soldiers at their post was the dread of the fate that
might otherwise have awaited their mothers, sisters, or
daoghters. The news of his wife’s tortures and subsequent
exeeution came to substantiate this opinion, which was still
further confirmed by the intelligence that thousands of women
were carried off to the mountsins, and, verbally, by the many
families rescued by Colonel Bsez from the bands of the detach-
meit that was driving them to Yberibi.

Siich means explain the otherwise inexplicable submission of
the Paraguayan, which is still further explained by the 300
traitors executed by forties and fifties during the latter times.
How many bave perhaps saffered the same fate, during the four
preceding years, of which no record has been left. The traitors
are not soldiers, because these were executed for desertion,
disobedience, insubordinstion, or for uttering complaints or
simple remarks, as proved by innumerable trials contained in

small pieces of paper, only a few inches square. The traitors
are those who were not in active service, brought from the city
to the encampment, civil employés, merchants, not excepting
clergymen, married ladies, and even unmarried girls, like Miss
Herrera, who, when saved miraculously, after having been kept
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four months exposed to the scorchin he
. g rays of the,
::e:u‘ap:;:::, ignored the motive that had’ led to Be:ntzpﬁ‘oni. “f
sat, w some people explained b i ;
heiress to a large fortune. P Aiiig ln PP g
Three hundred traitors executed in fiv tho
[hree e months,
taking into account those who escaped or were al:h ‘t’:u:iol:f
semble, reprc.:sent a public opimion which, taken as it was from
:lhle m:st enlightened and the highest classes, demolishes the
- 3 . »
gmiet, unanimity in the people’s approval of the acts of the
The conspiracy invented by Lopez, in which i
: S he im
his brothers and sisters, the wives of those m:nht:rl:“:::
generals, .who h'nd been previously accomplices and active
partakers in all his despotic proceedings, embraced also a large
;mmber" o.f merchants, both foreigners and natives, and was
s;:n ;v::: :jn pnr:mncr cdol an ancieat practice established ever
mes of Francia, b ‘
. etine s by the confiscation of all the property
If, therefore, the crime reduced itself, as othe
. re, ] , a8 could not be -
wise among unarmed people, to complain of so much ucle:s
:uﬂerln_g, the spoliation of their property and money, must
ave formed a strong inducement to denunciation, as i Spain
‘ih‘" persecution of the Jews found an incentive in the confisca-
:l:? of the wealth of the race of the Rothschilds, who held in
l_;x;'.lron cheau all the then circulating means. = The causes
po m_u!_gnd religions fanaticism, were the same then as new :
‘li’:gpneton of cattle could not escape, and were ruked.u
;: c:::: n?et;.::l:llllngwbecntae‘“ued. An order has been found
| e ca thal i
b ey Mgl t was found should be seized
Colonel Martinez, Commandant of i
| : ’ Humaits, Dr.
ch.nef medical officer, had been thus plundered, "vhilst :::t.l::
with zeal. their services to the tyrant. Jeilohay and en
towards his brother Benigno, who bad been educated in Bnrop:’
’

who was pleading for his due share of his father’s patrimony
B2 ’




xx

w before and during the war, always despised Lopex
:::n t::' bottom of his heart, explain too well the brother’s
tn;.::t is not so easily explained is the death of Carreras,
of Telmo Lopez, of Saa’s adjutants lately arrived, and of all the
Argentines and Orientals in his service, unless the version of
the Prussian, Von Versen, be admitted, giviog as a motive the
batred which he entertained against all those who had impelled
him inlo the war, or approved at first his senseless schemes,
now that the reality had undeceived him.

VI.

all the privations which obliged ladies to go almost
nn::!i,d‘ bteclm d:ring four years all their clothes hnd been
worn out, the army to cover its nakedness with raw hides, and
the wounded to die by thousands for waant of medicines, it were
hard to believe, unless we had the undeniable evidence of all
General Rivas’ division, which took Lopez’s quarters, that they
found there in abundance, and in almost regal profusion, all the
choicest wines and liqueurs of European manufacture, preserves,
hams, and everything that the most refined luxury can aceum-

-port.

“hst:ci: :::‘ t.hp: principal facts that chn:acteriu ?bil terrible
struggle, provoked by the pride and iniquity of a misereant who
inherited the strange organisation of a nation emerged from the
forests three centuries ago, brought up to a blind obedience, as
if listening to God's command, without inherent or acquired
rights, without frce will, an(ll nc:ustomed to see moral

ions punished as criminal acts.
tn:;ls';:si:torndp more, is shown in the documents that follow,
since the Paraguayan despotism, if this name can be given to
that government, is so regular in its acts, and follows sc closely
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all legal forms, that not a single act, however arbitrary,
<criminal, or absurd, emanating from the Government, has taken
place without being attested to by a lawsuit, a summary infor-
mation, or a writt¢n order, in all of which the decision of H.E.,
the Marshal President, is invoked, and each document bears
testimony to the strict execution of the orders, and at times the
executioner spontaneously recognises that the crime he commits
is a sacred duty, or exculpates himself for not having compre-
hended the serious consequences of a deed he considered
invocent. Thus, the Simuncas archives have revealed to the
world, after the lapse of three centuries, the crimes of Philip 1I.,
noted, registered, and detailed with paternal care, by the secret
and silent monster who had made of his own animosities, of his
ambition, covetness, and cruelty, his gods, his religion, his
conscience, and his moral guides.

VII.

The Allies have still a rude task before them, that of dis-
lodging the tiger from his last den in the Cordilleras, where he
has dragged thousands of families, who have to live upon the
scanty distribution of -rations, without a home, whilst the
women are tilling the ground to support them, as even before
the fall of Angostura the 900 wowmen and children, removed
under strong escort from one end of the territory to the other,
were ordered to do.

Lopez may fall alive into the hands of the Allies. What will
be done with him? Are the laws of international right, recog-
nised by Christian and civilised nations, valid for a monster like
him? Has nobody a right to call him te account for the death
of 300 victims called traitors? The Argentine Republic must
kunow how the 170 who died in the prisons came by their death,
among whom were officers of its army and navy, and many
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peaceful merchants, dragged from their hemes to execution.
Where are the Argentine prisoners of war, who ought and
might have been exchanged for the 3,000 or more in our power,
who are living free and happy, some working for their own
account in Buenos Ayres, others voluntarily serving in the army,
with rations and pay equal to those of the Argentine soldier?

If it be allowed to a horrible wretch to exterminate his own
nation, why is this doctrine to be applied to the sacrifice of
thonsands of innocent Argentines, cowardly murdered by tor-
tures and martyrdom? When the monster protested, because
he believed his life in danger from the assassin’s kuife, aimed
by his enemies, the President of the Argentine Republic and
Commander-in-Chief of the Allied armies, Brigadier-General
Bartolomé Mitre, replied with diguity to so barefaced a calumny,
that he made Marshal Lopez personally answerable for any
transgression of the rules of war among civilised pations, as
lnid down by international right. It behoves the actual Presi-
dent of the Republic to see that warning fulfilled, thus re-vindi-
cating outraged humanity, and as a legitimate retaliation upon a
treacherous enemy.

The indictment is contained in the documents which follow,
and which speak for themselves.

Henceforward, Lopez’s defence, or his vindication, jeopardises,
before mankind and civilisation, the honor of whoever should
undertake it, and would militate against the right of peoples
to exist, whether of those who bear the tyranny, or of their
neighbors who, by immense sacrifices, escape such abject

domination.
Buxxwos Avums, June, 1869,

PAPERS AND OFFICIAL DOOUMENTS

PARAGUAYAN TYRANT,

SEIZED ON THE 27rm DECEMBER, 1868.




TOUCHING LETTER OF VICE-PRESIDENT SANCHEZ TO
LOPEZ REFUTING HIS ALLEGED COMPLICITY IN THE
CONSPIRACY. .

I a declaration obtained through torture, Treasurer Bedoya,
whom Lopez afterwards shot, stated that Vice-President
Sanchez had been influenced by Benigno Lopez, the brother
of the tyrant, who was subsequently barbarously sacri-
ficed.

Lopez sent to Asuncion a commission to institute legal
proceedings against the Vice-President, to whom, at the same
time, he wrote a letter full of recriminations. Vice-President
Sanchez wrote then the letter which follows, the original of
which was lately found in the battlefield of Angostura.

““ Long Live the Paraguoyan Republic !

‘“Luque, March 27, 1868.

“To H.E. the Marshal President of the Republic, and
Commander-in-Chief of its Armies.

‘‘ Most Excellent Sir,—

‘“In pursuance of Y.E.’s orders, transmitted to me through
Major Francisco Fernandez, desiring me to furnish Y.E. with a
statement relative to the points therein alluded to, I herewith
proceed to reply with all sineerity.

‘“ Y.E. reminds me, first, that when you wrote me a letter at
the beginning of January, dwelling at length upon the people’s
fears concerning the Vice-Presidential authority, of which I was
by law invested, upon my equivocal behaviour cun the occasion
of the glorious victory by our arms at Tuyuty, upon the teport
which had reached Y.E. of my having fallen under the oompleto
control of Y.E.’s brother, Don Benigno, whose antecedents
were so unfortunate, and upon the gratuitous accasations made
by the public against Y.E., you bad trusted to rouseé me 'from
my lethargy, and free me h‘om an, lnlluence which, in the eyes
of the people, was injurious both to Y.E. and to lnyoell but
that you were soon forced to abandon this, bope cause my
reply was laconic and altogether msngmﬂcnnt Thai e en then.
Y.E. attributed my curt answer to the secnrny of commumca-
tion, and, remembering my many years of public service, Y.E.
hoped that my subsequent conduct would show to the couytry,
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and to the world, that, if what had happened was due to want
of pre-meditation, after being so fully advised as I had been,
my policy would undergo a great change. But that, after-
wards, Y.E. has' been undeceived, because you have been told
that I still continue to be influenced by Don Benigno.

¢ Y.E. also tells me that I knew already that the ex-treasurer
had been retained in the encampment, because his proceedings
in Asuncion had not been satisfactory to Y.E., and you were
afraid lest the influence he had acquired over public function-
aries, myself not excepted, in virtue of the post he occupied,
and of his easy access to Y.B.'s family, through his marriage
with Y.E.’s sister, should obstruct the march of the Govern-
ment.

“‘That, later on, Y.E. saw that your fears were well founded,
and you continued to detain there the ex-treasurer, Don
Saturnino Bedoya, and kept him separated from all public
business, but without having then any reason to expect what
happened, viz., that on the 19th ult. some ironclads forced the
passage of Humaita, and Bedoya, who until then had preserved
his serenity, and borne without much trouble his not very
honorable position, got alarmed, and foreseeing a political com-
motion in this place, declared, in a vague manner, to the Right
Rev. Bishop, that a plan of conspiracy was being hatched here,
for objects which he could not explain; and he would say
nothing further, notwithstanding being pressed to do so by the
Bishop and by General Barrios, by order of Y.E.

““That, subsequently, the news reached Y.E. of an extra-
ordinary and surprising fact, viz., that I had convoked the
Council on the occasion of the appearance before Asuncion of
* three ironclads, for the purpose of deciding whether they should
be hostilised or not.

““ That this fact called seriously Y.E.’s attention, and gave
rise to the re-call of Minister Berges, and those acting with him,
who all confirmed the news, by stating that the Commandant
of Asancion, abusing his official position, insisted upon the
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convocation of the Council, and upon his being represented
therein by the Minister of Foreign Affairs, and was seconded
by my inexplicable docility, and by my having omitted,
either unintentionally d¢ not, to send for Councillor the
Dean Bogado. :

“That Y.E. learnt with shame that, at the instigation of the
same Commandant, the Council met a second time in his private
house, with my conseént, because the previous resolution of
hostilising the enemy had not satisfied said Commandant.

“That on account of these alarming antecedents, Y.E.
ordered the accusation of Bedoya, from which had resuited that
he, together with Don Bewmigno, were to form a revolutionary
government, that shonld hand over the country to the enemy.
And that in all this I was looked upon ss one of the principal
instruments.

‘“ But when Bedoya was questioned as to the grave charge
brought against me, he answered that I have not governed but
made myself the wretched tool of his candidate, Don Benigno,
and that, although he had no evidence of my participation in
the conspiracy, my obedience, even in the most insignificant
matters, was so blind, that there could be no doubt as to my
readiness to fulfill Don Benigno’s orders, which would, no
doubt, lead me to unmistakable treason.

‘“Here Y.E. cuts short a narrative extremely painful, leaving
to me to make the fatal deductions that necessarily follow from
what is already stated, and from the further details, of which
Y.E. has desired I should be informed by Major Francisco
Iemmdex, by Benitez, and by Judge Orlellado, who have all
touched with their own hands the festering sore with which
the mother country is affticted.

‘“Y.B. goes on to say—‘Oh! if all its children had shown
only a particle of all the patriotism and abnegation of which
they boast in the streets and public squares; and had, in how-
ever small a degree, assimilated themselves with those who
generously shed theirblood in the field, that blood would long ago




"have been staunched, and the wouunds healed ; bat, unfortunately,

the enemy possesses the key of our debility.” You pray that the
God of nations be merciful and not punish our faults, in order
that our mother country sheuld not, after so many sacrifices,
disappear from the face of the earth. Y.E. also adds, that so
grave a situation obliged you to abandon plans carried on until
now with so much glory, and forced you to adopt others, thus
giving to the enemy an unexpected advantage. That, neverthe-
less, Y.E.’s faith, both in the protection of our God and the
decision and brayery of loyal citizens, is still unfaltering,

‘“The paragraph which then follows, besides what Y.E. is
pleased to order me in the same, with reference to another
employé, and which I have already complied with, imposes upon
me the duty of making the accompanying statement, which, if
not as satisfactory as I might have wished, will have the merit
.of being ingenuous, as given by one who bas his heart in his
hand. A

‘1 do not pretend. to allude to the fears of the people with
regard to the exercise of my authority, and upon my unequivoeal
behaviodr on the occasion of the glorious victory of our grms in
Tayuty, because I was not conscious of my sin, and although I
certainly omitted to hoist the national flag at first, I did so
subsequently, and I feel more than convinced thatall the acts
of the people’s rejoicings were prompted by myseif.

‘‘ With regard to Don Benigno’s complete control over me,
and the gratuitous accusations against me in this respect that
reached Y.E., it may be that my want of penetration has led me
into the submission to his influence of which I am accused. If,
however, from lack of memory, not from any desire to hide
anything from Y.E., I cannot found my defence on special cir-
cumstances, I cannot understand how Don Benigno could have
exercised so greal a control over me, since there never existed
between us any frequent or regular intercourse, which would
appear mecessary, unless it were during the time that he
attended public meetings with the view of discussing and
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agreeing upon matters affecting the national cause. Then, it is-
true my having said to him that I needed assistance, because I
regreited to see at times that nothing was brooght forward for
discussion by those present, whilst nothing suggested itself to
me, and then sometimeés he would furnish us with matter for
the purpose, in which I never coald detect that his ideas had
any other tendency save the general welfare.

‘“When citizen José de C. Urbieta spoke to me, about two.
months ago, vn his return from Paso Pucu, I referred to him
what had occurred between Don Benigno, the ex-chief of
Yaguaron, and myself, of which I have no doubt he informed
Y.E. Don Benigno from that time left off attending the
meetings, until the enemy’s irvnclads forced the passage of
Humait4, and then his attendance was not remarked upon by
anybody, nor did it oceur to me to inquire into it, which is not
to be woundered in one of my sort. I remember that he
occasionally showed me despatches from Y.E., and undoubtedly
this, coupled with the respect | have always professed for all
that belongs to Y.E.’s house and family, was enough to conviace
me that there was mothing improper in his attending the
meetings. But this want of criterion on my part did not go
beyond a certain limit, for, on the day that the question was
mooted of calling thve meeting for the ridiculous object of
knowing whether we should be the first in opening fire on the
jronclads that came to Asuncion, I consulted Benitez whether
we ought to ask Don Benigno to attend, and I was answered in
the affirmative. I did not make any further reply, but I bhad
reason greatly to deplore my silence when, on reading Y.E.’s
esteemed  letter before Orlellado, Fernandez, and Benitex, I
reminded the latter of the above circumstance, and he said that
he was not aware then that Don Benigno had forfeited Y.E.'s
good opinion, since T had omitted to aecquaint him 'with the
letter in which Y.E. disapproved Dou Bemgno's conduet, of
which be only heard afterwards. My memory will not enable
me to state anything positive in this respect, but I was under
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the impréssion that nobody had been ignorant of this maiter
among us.

““With reference to the request of the Commandant that the
Council should meet to deliberate whether the ironclads were
to be fired upon, I remember feeling very much astonished, and
considered it both impertinent and out of place, and I evean
think I expressed ‘myself in this sense to Minister Berges, Dean
Bogado, Rivero, and others. If I allude to these two instances
it is not with a view of exonerating myself from the charge of
having twice allowed myself to be enticed to this meeting,
which was due to my inexperience and to my fatal propensity cf
mistrusting my own judgment, but only for the purpose of
stating facts which I think may partly rebat Don Saturnino’s
gratuitous and horrible supposition, that he could count upon
my treason to hand over to bis candidate the reins of
government.

‘“ How eould he possibly count upon me tp betray my govern-
ment, withouat even the slightest reference to any act or
expression of mine to make his inference probable? How, then,
did he come to such an infamous coneclusion? What motive
could: plunge into this black crime an old man who bad nearly
reached the term of his life, and who is on the brink of
his grave, whilst during a lengthened existence he bas never
been kmown to have had any kind of aspirations? , Andagainst
whom was I supposed to be conspiring? Nothing less than
against Francisco  Solano Lopez, the most worthy Marshal
President of the Republic, to whom, as well as to his illustrious
predecessor, I owed a great deal more than I deserved, both
as regards rank and wealth. Ideny, therefore, with all the
strength of my soul, this shameless and barefaced imposture of
Don Saturnino’s, and 1 will do so to the last.

‘‘My memory fails me with regard to what occurred with
Dean Bogado, as to his having mentioped, either in the Council
or out of it, that his opinion was against its being held, and I

" may have thus laid myself open to the charge of having
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disregarded the opinion of s0 worthy a citizen, and thas incurred
Y.E.’s disapproval. I can only, however, remember that I
heard with pleasure citizen Riveros remark that the intimation
from the enemy of bombarding a town could only be awaited
for in case hostilitics had not begun, but not ia our case, when
the belligerents have been at war for a lengthened and
continuous ‘périod. | It was principally owing to this remark
that the original motion of firing upon the ironclads was unani-
mously confirmed.

“* The motive brought forward by the Commandant before the
Council for suggesting a different proceeding, was the scarcity
of projectiles, and I have no doubt that even this consideration
had in no way any influence In altering the resolution I had
come to from the beginning, which was eventually agreed to
by all.

“ My fault in having ommitted to make the slightest allusion
to this anarchical plan, being fully aware of it, as Y.E. is
pleased to state; has beem altogether unintentional: 1 was
ingenuous enough never to suspect that the Commandant’s
request for a meeting could have so foul a purpose, being
inclined to think that it was due to ignorance om the part of the
individual who convened the meeting. The motive of my not
having Informed Y.E of it may be attributed on the one hand
to this 'véry imprudent indulgence, of which 1 am the victim,
being plausibly deceived by the excuse of want of projectiles,
and, on.the other. hand, to my bad memory and ignorance
of the distribution of time, which is likely to give rise to
still farther charges against me, and yet I can conscientiously
assert that in no instance has my silence been due to
premeditation.

‘T will stop here, most Excellent Bir, in order not to delay
any louger in fulfilling your commands, and lose the chance of
the mail steamer that leaves to-day; but implere you, as
earnestly as I can, without asking indulgence for the many
faults that weigh me down, that you may be pleased to grant
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me absolution of my supposed resdiness to counspire, in v.vhich
Pon Saturnino has thought he could implicate me, and which is

what most deeply affects me.
“‘May God preserve Y.E.’s valuable life for many years.
¢ Most Excellent Sir,
¢¢ Your obedient servint,

“ FraNCISCO Sancmez.””

LOPEZ’ LETTER TO HIS MOTHER.
Her intercession in favor of his Brothers and Sisters pitilessly rejected -
‘‘September 10, 1888.

«« 8efiora Donia Juana Paula Cerrillo de Lopez.

¢ PDearest Mother,—

«¢] have received your much esteemed letter 9( the 3rd, and
I am still alive to tell you so on the sixth anniversary of my
father's death, through the mercy of the Leord, who has been
pleased to preserve me yet, notwithstanding the many machina-
tions, in which even my own near relations have taken part.

11

““It is true that several weeks have elapsed without my
‘writing to you, and I greatly value your kind rebike, since on
other occasions my remissness, even though of longer duration,
bas called for no remark. My silence is to be attributed partly
to this bad habit or negligence, but more particularly to the
heavy moral sufferings whick I have had to bear for some time
past. The .extraordinary events that have occurred in our
family of late fill me with shame before the world, and, but for
your letter, I might, perhaps, still feel repugnance from taking
up the pen to indite one single word on things as monstrous as
they are horrifying. Nevertheless, you invoke the mournful
memory of this day, and beg me to answer you. [ cannot resist
your request; and, although I know not what I ought to say, I
find myself writing.

‘“1 cannot express, Mother, all the grief with which I have
read your letter, because, after all, I had asked Senor Sanchez
to tell you from me upon the knowledge I have of the matters
to which you refer, I might have expected more ingenuousness
and sincerity, however hard for me to bear. Poor Mother! you
perbaps do not know that I have already passed through the
most bitter part of this monstrous affair, and you have dreaded
hurting me. 1 thank you; but my trials have reached their
highest point when I became acquainted with the facts of the
case. It is my turn to dread; but 1 should still further
embitter for you this day, by dwelling upon events not less
painfal, than that of six years ago. All my efforts have proved
useless, all my hopes vain, and only now I can explain, or, to
speak more correctly, others explain to me the cause. All were
leagued against me, all were my enemies. But, God has
granted that light should break through the darkmess; they
have been confounded, and I am still here. I am here for you;
and, alas! alas! that I could be also for all those who did not
think they needed me.

“ Yenanclo, Benigno, and Inocencia are well in health.
o
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“If I wereallowed to give you an advice, I would recommend
you not to show yourself toe much alarmed at what is going on,
since it would be highly imprudent for you to do so, however

great may be the yearning of a mother’s heart.
“J look upon your esteemed letter as from a mother to her

son, not from a suppliant to the magistrate, because in the

latter case it would only help to do harm.
‘‘ Believe, Mother, in all the affection with which your bless-

ing is asked for by your very obedient son.
“F. 8. Lopez.””

OF THE MANNER IN WHICH THE OPINION OF EUROPE
HAS BEEN FORMED WITH REGARD TO PARAGUAY.

In a note from the Paraguayan Minister in Paris, Gregorio
Benitez, found in the enemy’s archives on the 27th December,
1868, weé read— .

“‘ It may have, perhaps, rcached Y.E.’s knowledge that Don
Luis Bamberger, formerly United States Consul in Asuncion, is
engaged in publishing articles in the English press in favor of
Paruguay, hoping, as he has frankly confessed to me, that once
the war is brought to an end, the Gover. ment of the Republic
will duly reward his labors. I must warn Y.E. that I under-
stand that his expectations are rather high, and that now his
contributions appear only in periodicals and reviews of small

mportance. Formerly, he was able to publish articles in the
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Morning Post, Sun, Daily News, &c., but at present he only writes
in third-rate and fourth-rate periodicals. Nevertheless, Mr.
Bamberger’s labors are not useless. This gentleman, like
all people engaged in the press, has an insatiable thirst of
money ; he is always asking for it, and I greatly regret not
being able to gratify him as he or I could wish. Once only I
gave him £25 for cigars, and could give him no more. His
applications for money are very embarassing, because, as I duly
value any help from the press, I should wish to be able to satisfy
his wants.”’

Mr. Luis Bamberger’'s note, referred to in the Paraguayan
Minister’s communication, explains whence came, and what was
the object of, the propagauda in favor of the despot, Solanmo
Lopez: it is as follows :—

‘“27 Bush Lane. E.C.,
‘“ London, August 8, 1868.

““To H.E. Marshal Don Francisco S. Lopez, President of the
Paraguayan Republic, &ec., &c., &ec.

‘“ Most Excellent Sir,—

‘“ Allow me to felicitate Y.E. and the Paraguayan people for
the heroic defence of the Republic and its independence, and
may a glorious triumph crown Y.E.’s arms.

‘‘The long and gigantic war sustained by Paraguay for more
than three years, has attracted the attention of Europe to a
country which, for its exceptional history and geographical
position, was more ignored than the rest of South American
Republics, and the little that was known about it has never
proceeded from either friendly or disinterested quarters.

‘‘The enemies of Paraguay in Europe, I regret to say, are
neither few nor despicable, consisting principally of the diplo-

matic agents of Brazil and of General Mitre, who, by their gold,
s .




14

disposé of half the press of England, and have sought té buy alk

the most competent writers. L
“ All the news of the war came through them, and were

published in such a form as to suit their interests ; the greatest
truths, well known in Rio Janeiro and Baenos Ayres, were
distorted so as to suit the cause of the Allies.

““The only voices raised to contradict the false reports of
Brazil, and present before the English, and, consequently, the
European public, Paraguay and its government in a true point
of vlew, were ours, that of my son Anthony and my own. For
the last two years we have labored with pleasure in placing
before the public the true history of the events of the war as
they happened, according to the mews we received by each
packet, and we shall continue in our task to the end.

“* Our lubors have not been fruitless ; because, for some con-
siderable time past, the periodicals that were most hostile to
Paraguay and its government have stopped publishing their lies,
silenced by the simple truths we have published ; and, I believe
that it will be admitted, that we have contributed to the welfare
of Paraguay.

‘* A pamphlet, published by me in the same sense, of which I
had the pleasure of forwardibg Y.E. some copies, which, 1 trust,
have reached you safely, was well received by the public, and

« I was very glad of the criticisms and attacks it gave rise to,
since it was a proof that my small work had fulfilled its object,
viz., to exhibif to the public Paraguay and its illustrious govern-
ment in its proper colors, which was only a duty we owed to a
government and a country that have always treated us as
friends.

““To prove to Y.E. the truth of what I say, 1 enclose a list of
the newspapers published here containing articles or commumi-

® This list comprises various sumbers, during a period from August 14, 1867, to
Angust 6, 1808, of the following Loadon newspipers :— Glode, Morning Fout, Daily
Telegraph, Morming Advertiser, Daily News, Sun, Standard, Morning Star, Observer,

and Anglo- American Times,
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cations from us. One of us would have gone to visit Y.E., and
taken the originals; but they will be remitted whenever a safe
opportunity offers, although Senor Don Candido Barreiro, who
has helped us not a little in our task, has copies of all of them.

‘“ As we have done up to the present, we shall continue to

sacrifice our time and means in the task we have undertaken,
and in which we have assumed serious engagements with
several editors, convinced that Y.E. will assist us in fulfilling
them, and that Y.E. will recognise our efforts and labors in the
interest of the Republic.

‘* We hope that soon the war will be over, and that Paraguay
will again enjoy the peace which it has experienced for so many
a year, and which placed it in a condition to struggle success-
fully with so many and such powerful enemies, rising, like a
new Phanix, from the ashes of this destructive war.

““I trust that Y.E. will accept with benevolence this letter of
a friend, whom Y.E. has known for many years, and who will,
wi;l; pleasure, execute Y.E.’s orders whenever in his power
to do so.

‘“Y.E.’s most humble servant and friend,

“Luis Bameencen.”




THE SPY SYSTEM. SUPERIOR OFFICERS AT THE MERCY
OF THEIR SUBALTERNS.

““ Camp in Pikysyry, November 18, 1868.

“Ensign Vicente Goybuni has informed me that Corporal
Silveiro Fernandez, 7th Regiment, a patient in the General
Hospital, had reported to him several abuses committed in the
hospital, viz., when Assistant-Surgeon Talavera was in charge
of one of the hospital wards, he had with bim a cousin of his, by
name Zoilo Recalde, as hospital nurse, to whom he handed over
all the provisions intended for the patients, and who used them
at his own discretion. That,the informing corporal, being once
present at the killing for meat, by order of Talavera delivered
to Recalde all the fat of a ballock, which the latter employed
for his own private use. That, said Recalde, through the
influence of Talavera, has entered the Cerro Leon Hospital as a
patient, when he was not sick. That, on oneoccasion, Assistant-
Surgeon N. Gongzales, who was helping him in a ward, asked
Talavera to cure him of a disease he was suffering from, but
was not attended to.

““ Hicario Marco.”

“ Camp in Pikysyry, November 21, 1868.

‘““By Supreme. Order, Assistant-Surgeon Felipe Talavera to
receive fifty lashes in circle,* and to be attached to No. 40
Battalion, as common soldier.

F * Flogging in circle was when the culprit was made to stand in the middle of &
* eircle of men, each armed with a flail, which the¥ applied successively as they went
round, until the prescribed number of lashes had been applied.
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““Private Zoilo Recalde, one hundred lashes in circle,
and to be attached to No. 3 Bagtalion.

“F. J. Resquin .V

‘““In compliance with the above Supreme Order, I, the
undersigned, Captain Commanding the 9th Battalion, ordered
Assistant-Surgeon Felipe Talavera, and rank and file Zoilo
Hecalde, to be punishsd respectively with fifty and one hundred
lashes, afterwards telling off the first to serve as common
soldier in Battalion No. 40, and the second in Battalion No. 3.
in faith whereof I sign this, in the Camp of Pikysyry, on the
21st of November, 1868.

“ Canpino Mercamo.”

MODEL OF A LIST OF PRISONERS, SPECIFYING THE CLASS
AND CAUSE OF THEIR IMPRISONMENT.

IClnp in Pikysyry, October 17, 1888.

2nd Corporal Trifon Olmedo, 1st Battalion, in the stocks since
the 29th of last month, for having given leave of absence to rank
and file Clemente Duarte to go a short distance off to buy
oranges, owing to which the latter was able to desert, and has
oot beem captured up to this date.
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Sergeants Concordio Correaand Marcelino Torres in the stocks
since the 9th inst.: the first for having sent two soldiers;alone
to make wood, during which time one of them, called Igmacio
Caballero, deserted, but was afterwards captured; and the
seeond for having omitted to report the absence from muster of
said deserter, thinking that he was in Sergeant Correa’s hut.
Both belong to the 13th Battalion.

2nd Sergeant Agustin Estigarribia in the stocks since the 11th
inst., for having abandoned his corps at present.

Rank and file Eusebio Rindiar, 11th Battalion, in the stecks
since the 1 Ith inst., for the same motive as the preceding.

2n0d Sergeant Felix Gonzalez, 11th Battalion, in the stocks
since the 15th inst., for having, while on guard with Licutenant
Pascual Valiente, fallen asleep, and when ordered, in punish-
ment thereof, to stand up at the door, having struck his
officer.

2nd Ensign Policarpo Guillen, 53rd Battalion. placed under
arrest on the 6th inst., on account of a soldier belonging to a
fugitive party under his orders having deserted, who bas since
been captured.

2nd Lieutenant Saturnino Ortiz, 37th Battalion, placed under
arrest on the 7th inst., for having given leave of absence to a
soldier whilst on guard.

20d Sergeant Leandro Acufia, 27th Battalion, in the stocks
since the 4th inst., for baving chopped of rank and file Baltazar
Gavilan’s finger, whun assisting him to cut up some meat, hoth
being regimental cooks.

Corporal ‘Silverio Flores, smu Battalion, in the stocks since
the Sth of last month, for having, while on guard, allowed a
soldier to desert, who has been re-captured.

Ten in all.

PUNISHMENTS FOR NOT ACTING AS SPY. ANOTHER
SPECIMEN OF THE SYSTEM.

20th Battalion.

“Camp in Pikysyry, November 2, 1868,

‘“Ensign Elias Armoa, the sergeant, and two corporals of the
same, having, while on guard at the Comisaria, failed to report
the robbery of produce effected by Corporal Bolano, in compli-
city with the sentry of said guard, Lazaro Cumbarity. By
Supreme Order, said ensign to be reduced to the rank of
sergeant, and do duty within the barracks of his regiment: the
sergeant on guard to receive forty lashes, and reduced to
corporal, and do duty in the trenches: the corporal of said
guard to receive thirty lashes in circle, and be reduced to the
ranks : Corporal Angel Bolane to receive eighty lashes in circle,
and reduced to the ranks, and do duty in the kitchen under
surveillance : the sentry, Lazaro Cumbarity, who was an accom-
plice of Bolafio, to receive eighty lashes, and do duty in his
company under surveillance. The two thieves are to be made
to understand that they ought to have been shot, and the com-
mutzation of their sentence is due to the clemency of H.E. the
Marshal President of the Republic and Commander-in-Chief of
its Armies.

‘“ Rank and file Ventura Cano, who was on sentry near Lazaro
Cumbarity, to receive fifty lashes in circle, for having omitted
to report the circumstance to his corporal.




. ** The Commanding Officer of the corps, Major José Orihuela,
is charged with the execution of the above sentence, having
previously notified the criminals, and, after taking a copy
thereof, will return the original.

“F. I. Resquix.”

““Camp in Pikysyry, November 2, 1868.

““The Supreme Order entrusted to me has been duly carried
out, and [ let the two thieves know that they ought to have been
shot, but that seutence had been commuted through the cle-
mency of H.E. the President Marshal of the Republic and Com-
smander-in-Chief of its Armies; in faith whereof I sign this. ‘

“Josg OmimumrLa.’’

SPECIMEN OF PARAGUAYAN REPORTS. THE COHESION
OT THE ARMY EXPLAINED.

Espinillo.

¢ Camp in Puo Pucu, January 13, 1868.

‘“ To General Brugues.

‘“By Supreme Command, Sergeant Antonio Amarillo, 19th
Battalion, is reduced to the rnnk of corporal.

““ Rank and file Pedro Sarco, 4th Regiment of Artillery, 40
lashes, and to do duty under surveillance.

“Lieutenant Francisco Cespedes, and Ensign Rosendo Ces-
pedes, to be admonished, and set at liberty.

“ Lieutenant José Gamarce, to be admonished, and six double

¢ Corporal Manuel Gonzalez, thirty lashes.

‘‘Rank and file Eliceo Gimenez, one hundred lashes in circle.

““ Sergeant Saturnino Veron, to be admonished, and set at
liberty.

‘““Rank and file Valeriano Acosta, twenty-five lashes.

“ Ensign Juan Largosta, 20th Battalion, eight double guards
with musket, und to be deprived of his sword.

““ Corporal Antonio Chamoro, twenty-five lnbu, and redaced
to the ranks.

‘‘ Rank and lle Dolores Amarillo, 4th Iogh-t ofArullary
to be shot.

¢ Lieutenant Nicolu Ferreira, to be admonhhd and four

double guards.
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‘““Corporal Claudio Palacios, and rank and file Olegario
Laguardia, to be shot, severely admonishing Ensign Patricio
Pereira for baving acted with dilatoriness.

“F. 1. ResQuixn.”’

¢ Camp in Paso Espinillo, January 13, 1868.

‘“ Having received, with due consideration, the preceding list
of sentences, by Supreme Command, I ordered the punishments
and admonitions to be duly applied, and gave directions that
the three corpses should be buried in the general army
cemetery.

“Jose M. Brusues.””

INQUISITORIAL SYSTEM.

TRIAL ON A OHARGE OF HAVING DOUBTED THE SUCOESS OF THE
WAR. THE PRETENDED UNITY OF ACTION AND VALOR OF
THE PARAGUAYANS EXPLAINED. EFFECTS OF TALEBEAR-
ING. BOYS OF TWERLVE mmmwum!n
PROSECUTING PARTIES.

‘‘ Statdment relative to the expresions wilsred against our mother

country by Pedro Gawto, a soldier of the Escuadron Swalte of -

Villa France{ madé¢ by me, the undsrrigned , in complianos with
Buperior Orders, Mby‘co]’ﬂml uoko{“chm
of said losom. :
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¢¢ Long Live the Paraguagan Répu!-“cl
*¢ Villa Franca, April 8, 1868,

““To the Brigadier-General Commanding the Southern Division.

“‘1 have the honor to inform Y.E. that the telegraph employé&
of this provisional station, Juan Climado Valdovinos, reports to
me that the youth Dionisio Galian had told him thst about two
mouths ago he heard Pedro Gauto, a soldier of the Villa Franca
Squadron, employed in the State Farm of Bogadone, talking
about the present war with a woman that was on her way to
Villa del Pilar, whose name is not known, and that, among other
things, Gauto had said that all the efforts of the Supreme
Government of the Republic were useless, since the enemy was
closing in upon us on all sides, and that the Government was
now only making a show of resistance; that this convemlion ¢
was also heard by a youth named Yegros, because they were
both near the speakers. 1, consequently, summoned before me
the two youths, and their depositions, which I took separately,
agreed with one another.

““ Subsequently, I called before me the accused soldier, and
questioned him on the subject; notwithstanding, however, all
my.efforts to draw the truth from him, he denied everything,
and at last I had him put in fetters, lwaitlng your supreme

deliberation.
‘*“ This is all I have to bring to your knowledge.

‘* May God preserve you many yesars,
‘““Isipno Josx Anze.”’

¢“ Camp of San Fernando, April 21, 1868.

“The youth, Del Pilar Yegros, having been questioned about
«Gauto's sayings, stated: That, being employed in looking after
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the farm under the orders of Gauto, he was sitting one after-
noon, about three o’clock, on a hide on the ground in the
corredor of the farm-house, with another youth, Dionisio Galean,
whilst Gauto was sitting in a hammock, conversing with a
woman, and deponent heard the following words:—*Our
. superior is only acting for appearance sake, and that he may
not seem to give in altogether, because he has but few pcople
left.” That Gauto was not more explicit, but that deponent
understood he alluded to the Marshal President of the Republie
and our enemies ; that the woman did not speak one word in
reply, but only smiled when he spoke; that deponent does not
know the name or residence of said woman, but, he presumed,
she was Gauto’s concubine, because she lived and slept with
him for three or four days, and, after passing three or four days
in another cottage, she used to come back to the farm ; that he
heard the above conversation three or four days before the
arrival of the enemy’s ironclads; and that one or two days
after the womn went to the capital.

‘‘ That, subsequently, he (deponent) apd Galean agreed between
them thbat it would be proper to report the conversation they
had overheard, but their occupations in the farm prevented
them from doing so then, or until two oflicers of the telegraph
service, by name Martinez and Valdovinos, happened to come to
the farm ; that Galean was the first who mentioned the subject
to Valdovinos, whilst deponent was away, and, on his return,
Valdovinos questioned him also, and they jointly reported all
that had happened, and the following day they repeated the
sanre thing in the Comadancia. Deponent stated that he was
twelve years old.

““The youth, Dionisio Galean, being subsequently questioned,
said that about four days before the arrival of the enemy’s
ironclads, whilst deponent and his companion, Del Pilar Yegros,
were sitting on the ground upon a hide, they heard Pedro
Gauto, who was sitting in a hammock, and a woman, whose
name he ignores, conversing together, and he heard Gauto
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talking upon the present war, and saying—*‘ Many of us have
died, on account of the Marshal President of the Republic.’. He
also said—* Our superior is striving in rain, bécause he has no
longer any chance, and, only not to appear that he gives in, he
still makes efforts:’ them went on to say—*It seems we are
going to lose,” alluding to the war. That these remarks of
Gauto were addressed to the woman, but she did not reply a
single word, nor did she show either that she was pleased or
otherwise ; that deponent ignores the resideunce of said woman,
but believes her to belong to the Department of Villa Pilar; that
about two days after this occurrence she left for Villeta. That
Gauto did not again speak of these matters in depouent’s presence;
that be enly enquired of all who passed news of the war, and
some told him that many of the enemies had died, but he never
remembers in these conversations anything disagreeable; that
deponent isa resident of Villa Franca, that he was employed in
said farm as belonging to the urban militia ; that the other
soldiers employed in the farm besides Yegros did not hear what
Gauto said ; that depouent and his companion, Yegros, agreed
to report what they had heard, but as they had no opportunity
they could nof do so at ence, but only about twenty-two
days afterwards, when two officers of the telegraph went to the
farm, when deponent stated the case to one of them, by name

‘Valdovinos, and they, hearing the report confirmed by Yegros,

reported the circumstance to the Commandant of Villa Franeca ;
that deponent recollects that three days elapsed before he made
his declaration to Valdovinos; that the day on which he
denounced Gauto he had had a dispute with him about some lead
balls that were missing from his box; that, having coma to
words, Gauto said that deponent was a traitor and a descendant
of the Canbai, and was answered that it was he who wasa
traitor, for baving spoken against his own country; that, before
thas dispute, deponent told Gauto twice that be would denounce
bhim for what he bad said ; ‘and that ever since Gauto was more
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exacting with him and Yegros as to the work in the farm;
deponentaddedthat he was fifteen years of age.

‘“In order to aseertain thoroughly all the circumstances of
Gauto's erime, denounced by Galian and Yegros, yesterday, I8th
of April, about 8 p.m., Ensign Ignacio Caballero, 7th Regiment,
with Corporal Antouio Guerren and two soldiers of the l?t.h
Battalion, went to fetch Gauto and bringhim te the prison of this
camp. On their return they took the highroad tothe west of the
large corral, Gauto being tied on horseback, and before they had
goue far Gauto’s conductors heard that he was cutting his throat.
Eusign Caballero as quick as possible seized Gauto by the arm,
but not beforethe latter bad sucoeeded in inflicting a deep wound
in his throat; po weapon was found, however, in the hand of
the saicide. Gauto became faint, and Major José¢ Palacios and
Sargeon Julian Quevedo were sent for, the latter on examining
the wounded man found him aiready unable to speak, and
ordered him tobetakeh to the guard-house. Whilst he was there,
1 bappened to be passing by, I eadeavored to question said
eriminal on eath, bat found that he was unable to speak, although
bhe still bad a great deal of strength, and kept“turning himself
over on the hide on which he was stretched ; on seeing his con-
dition, T exborted him, by every means, to declare who had
wounded him, and with what weapon, and, if he could not
speak, told him to point by sign whether he himself bad
inflicted the wound, but I could not succeed in getting any
answer, either by words or signs. Subsequently, I seat for the
surgeon who had examined him, and, after baving administered
to him the customary oath, ordered him to examine again the
wound and explain it. This he did carefully, and said—That the
wound of the criminal, Pedro Gauto, was in the larynx, and the
esofagus had been ocut through, that it must have been made
with a sharp cutting instrument, being three inches in length
and one and a half in depth; that in consequence of it Gauto
could not articulate; that, in his opinion, the wound was highly

dangerous.
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‘““The wound was sown up, but 'in the morning of this day
‘Gauto was found dead. I then immediately ordered the
same surgeon, Julian Quevedo, in the presence of the two
corporals of the guard, to ascertain whether the criminal,
Pedro Gauto, was dead, and Quevedo, after a careful examina-
tion, declared that Gauto was undoubtedly dead. The fetters
were then taken off the corpse, and I ordered it to be buried
in unconsecrated ground behind the cemetery of this camp, as
a suicide. 4

‘“1 had, some days previous, subjected deceased to an inter-
rogatory, after receiving the depositions of the denouncing
parties, and, although he at first denied eyerything, om my
earnest and repeated exhortations to speak the truth, he
declared that he certainly had spoken some words similar to
what he was accused of having said, but I did not take any note
at the time, having to attend to other business, and because
Gauto said that he did not then recollect what it was he had said,
but that it was more or less in conformity with the depositions
of Galean and Yegros; at all events, Gauto seemed himself con-
vinced that he was guilty of the crime imputed to him.

‘““The weapon with which the criminal, Pedro Gauto, inflicted
his wound has been looked for from an early hour, by asergeant,
a corporal, and a soldier, in my presence, in the same spot
where the event occurred, but no traces of it have been found.

““In order further to elucidate how the misfortane occurred,
I sent for Ensign Ignacio Caballero, who was under arrest, and
questioned him about it. He replied—That, yesterday, in the
early part of the might, Major José Palacios sent him to the
prison to fetch the criminal, Pedro Gauto, for the purpose of
taking his declaration; that he was conducting him, guarded
by a corporal and two soldiers, and they were coming by the
rear of the barracks of the 9th Battalion, and, before having
gone far, the soldier who was leading by a rope the horse on
which the criminal was mounted, saw that the latter made a

D
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t his own throat, and called out to deponent, who
rmotionlzsw to seize Gauto by tbo'righl arm; bul was too
late; althomgh Gauto had nothimg: in bis band; that, before.
starting, deponent did not examine whiether the c_ri,-hnl carried .
any arms ; that this was owing to want of precaution on bis part, .
and because, knowing that the criminal had been in pruon,nndor,-.
a nhzry, it never occurred to him that he could have any weapon
on bim; that; sithough the night was dark, deponent also saw

Gauto with his hand up to the throat, as soon as the soldier that

i the horse called out to him; that, as soon as the
;:lol:n‘:engtook place, deponent went to report it; and that the
above deposition is in conformity with what happened, and the

th,

":?l;ﬁ:c:queutly, I questioned Corporal Antonio Gueren, 12th
Battalion, who was guarding the deceased, l'.edro Gaute, and h:
said—That being on guard at the prison of this camp on the 18t
inst., anofficer, whose name he does not know, came to fetch a
prisoner in irons, name unkvown, and ordere.d deponent and
Privates Andres Gonzalez and Antonio Zawudio, to accompany
hini, to'gethcr with the officer of the guard ; the prisouer yeut
on horseback, and his horse was lead by a rope, held by Private
Gonzalez, with deponent on his left, Zamudio on his right, and
the officer behind; about a couple of hundred yards before
reaching a guard-house on the edge of a wood, Gonzalez ;aw‘
that the prisoner made a motion to cut his own t.hroat,'-u :0
once gave the alarm; the officer rushed forward to seize t
prisaner by the right arm, but found that his throat was already
cut, although he bad no weapon in his hand; he was at once
lowered and searched, but no cutting lnumme?t was fou-’d
upon him. . Afterwards, the officer went to the Commandant’s.
ofice to report the occurrénce. That, in taking the prisoner
out of prison the officer did not search him; that on the road the
deceased criminal did not say anything. Deponent thinks that
Gauto himself inflicted the wound, and nobody else, and adds
that what he has stated is the trath.
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“ To-day, April 21, I summened before me Privates Andres
Gonzalez and Antonio Zamudio, who escorted the deceased
together with' Corporal Antonio Gueren, and, on being ques-
tioned, Gonzalez said that four days ago, being on guard at the
prison of this camp, an officer, whom he did not know, came b
fetch a criminal in irons, whose name he also ignored ; then the
officer of the guard, 2ud Lieutenant M. Leguizamon, 12
Battalion, ordered the sergeant to send Corporal Guerem,
deponent, and Zamudio, to escort the prisoner; that depomemi
was leading the prisoner’s horse by a rope, the corporal and the
other soldier being respectively one on each side. and the offices
behind, urging on the prisoner’s horse with his whip ; that whess
they were passing by the rear of the barracks of the 9Sti
Battalion, deponent, who from time to time looked back to the
prisoner, saw, notwithstanding the darkness of the night, that
the latter was making a motion as if cutting his own throat, amd
deponentraisedanalarm ; the oflicer at once rushed forward amd
took bold of prisoner’s hand, but no sharp instrument was found,
cither in his hand or anywhere near on the ground, althougi
they all looked for it. Deponent thinks it must have jumped
out of prisoner’s hand when his arm was violently seized.
Deponent did not see the prisoner secarched when he left Chee
prison, to ascertain whether he had any weapon ; he, moreowe,,
feels certain that the prisoner himself inflicted the wound, sl
declares that all be has stated is the truth. :

*‘ Private Zamudio deposed that all that Gonzalez had said is
what occurred, and that he can neither add nor alter anything
to the latter’s account, being the whole truth without the
slightest falsehood.

“Vicenre Asaros.™




THE FORM OF LOPEZ’ TRIALS. NO DEFENCE ALLOWESD.
ALL SENTENCED TO DIE FOR ATTACHMENT TO THEIR

FAMILY.

41 REGIMENT.

Deposition of Antonio Irala, a nakive of Quindy, who deserted om
the 18¢A inst. ”

“ Camp in Pikysyry, October 31, 1868.

¢ Deponent states that on the morning of the above day he
deserted from his corps, with the intention of going to his
district, to visit the woman Teresa Almiron, who has nursed
bim, and whom he longed to see again ; bat having entered the
district of Villeta he was captured by a sergeant, who had been
watching about there, as he himself said, and who delivered
him to Lieutenant Casiano Roman, in Yaquito, and the latter

sent him on here.
“¢ For this reason, the above mentioned runaway is at present

in the stocks in the guard house of his own corps.
“Hmario Manco.”

““ Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.
‘* By Supreme Order, the deserter, Private Antonio Irala, 4th
Regiment, captured in Tacuaty, is sentenced to be shot.
“F. I. Resquix.”
“ Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.
““Im pursuance of the above Supreme Order, the deserter,
Private Antonio Trala, captured in Tacuaty, bas been executed.

In faith whereof 1 sign.
““ Bexito Roron.”

81

41sr BATTALION.

Deposition of Private Matias Vera, native of San Juan Bautista, who
deserted on the 23rd inst.

‘‘ Camp in Pikysyry, November 30, 1868.

‘‘Deponent states that about noon of said day he deserted
from .lna corps, without any motive, intending to go and Kve in
the district of Iturigua, where he says he has his family; that
on the day following his desértion, he was captured in tbe'
Cl.thtl de Aldana, jurisdiction of Ita, and was taken before the
military commaunder, who put him in irons and then sent him
on to this office.

‘The runaway is, consequently, i -

R o gm,ﬂ_ s q Y, in the guard-house of his

“HriLanto Marco.”

“Camp in Pikysyry, December 10, 1868.

‘“By Sup.remc Command, the deserter, Private Matias Vera,
41st Battalion, captured in the district of It4, is sentenced to be

shot.”
“F. I. Resquin.”

‘““In pursuance of the Supreme decree of this date, the
d.esertor, Private Matias Vera, 41st Battalion, captured m the
district of Ita, has been executed ; and, in testimony that the
Supreme Order of the most excellent Marshal President of the
Republic has been duly carried out, I siga this, in the camp of
Pikysyry, on the 10th of December, 1868.

“Francisco Roa.”




280 ReciMEnT OoF HORSE ARTILLEARY.

Deposition of Private De la Crus Chaparro, native of Quiguio, who
deseyted on the 130 inst.

¢¢Camp in Pikysyry, October 22, 1868.

“,l?ponent states that in the evening of said day he left his
ewrps, intending to go to his own district ; but, before reaching

B house, he was seized by two individuals, who took him to
HMajor Mesa in Caapucu, and the latter remitted him in irons to
=Nls office.
' 44 He states, moreover, that the only motive for his desertion
wras his wish to see his parents.
““ This runaway is at preseat in irons in the guard-house of

&is regiment.

“Hriario Marco.”

““Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.

““By Supreme Command, the deserter, Private De la Crux
Chaparro, 2nd Regiment of Horse Artillery, captured in his own
dlistrict of Quiquid, is sentenced to be shot.

“F. 1. ResqQuin.”

Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.

““In compliance 'with' the sboye Sapreme Order, received
with due respect, the deserter, Private Pe la' Cruz Chaparro, 2ad
Regiment of Horse Artillery, has been executed.

‘“Pepno Hemrwmoza.”
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53ap BATTALION.

Deposition of Private Vicentse Talavera, native of Asuncion, who
deserted on the BOW of last monih.

“ Camp in Pikysyry, l'ovcmbcr 10, 1868.

“Deponent states that on the morning of said 'day, bei'ng told
off to carry bricks to the trenches, and having, for some time
past, felt distress at the absence of his three sons, who are in
Luque, he thought of deserting, which he 'effected in order to
go and see his sons; and two days after his flight he was appre-
hiended, in the district of Ita, and taken before thé commander
of the district, who remitted him to prison in irons, and yester-
day afternoon he was sent to this office, arriving to-day.

‘‘ This runaway is in the guard-house of his corps, in irons.

‘“‘ HiLario Mamnco.”

“Camp in Pikysyry, November 11, 1868.

*‘By Supreme Order, the deserter, Private Vicente Talavers,
53rd Battalion, captured in the district of It4, is sentenced to

be shot.
“F. I. Resquin.”

‘““Camp in Pikysyry, November 11, 1868.

“In compliance with Y.E.’s Supreme Order, Private Vicente
Talavera, 53rd Battalion, has been executed.
“ Which I beg to report.for Y.E.’s informatien.

“Anronio P. GonzarLez.”’
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45T REGIMENT.

Deposition of the deserter Private Juan Yrala, nativs of San Ignacie
: . de las Misiones. :

“ Camp in Pikysyry, November 24, 1868.

‘“Deponent states that about seven days ago he deserted from
his corps after, evening muster, from no cther motive than a
desire to see his family, living in Paraguari, where he was
going, taking the highroad that goes through the jurisdiction of
Yaguaron, when he was apprehended, without making any
resistance. by a woman whom he did not know, and taken by her
to the head of the department; he was thence remitted in irons

to this office.
““In consequence whereof the runaway is at present in irons

at the guard-house of his regiment. '
““ HiLario Marco.”

‘ Camp in Pikysyry, November 24, 1868.

‘“ By Supreme Order, the deserter, Private Juan Yrala, of the
45th Regiment, captured in the Department of Yaguarom, is
sentenced to be shot.

“F. I. ResQuin.”

“Camp in Pikysyry, November 25, 1868.

“In compliance with the commands of H.E. the President of
the Republic, I ordered Private Juan Yrala to be shot, in faith
whereof I sign this.

“Bansiy Rivamora.”
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2nD REGIMENT.

Deposition of Private Leandro Sanabria, native of Villa San Pedro,
wha, deserted about eight days ago.

‘“Camp in Pikysyry, November, 10, 1868.

‘*Deponent states that in the afternoon of the 3rd inst. he
deserted from his corps, urged by a desire to eat bartimento, 0
look for which he took the direction of the interior departments;
but on the fifth day of his desertion he was captured in the
Department of Ita, receiving two mortal sword cuts from his
captors on the head and shoulders, when he tried to run apway.
He was subsequently led before the head of the depdrtment,
who remitted him to this office.

‘““In consequence whereof this runaway is at present in
custody in the gmard-house of his regiment.

“ Hizamto Manco.” '

“ Camp in Pikysyry, November 11, 1868.

““By Supreme Order, the deserter, Leandro Sanabria, 2ad
Regiment, captured in the Department of It4, after offering
resistance, is sentenced to be shot.

- “F. I. Resquin.””

“ Camp in Nandipay, November 11, 1868.

‘“ The deserter, Private Leandro Sanabria, has been executed,
in compliance with the Supreme Order transmitted by you.

‘“Manuver MExDIETA.””
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20T BATTALION.

Dupotition of Private Felipe Bogado, mative of Caasapa, who
deserted on the 2060 ult.”

““Gamp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.

‘“ Deponent states that feeling distressed at the absence of his
children, he:thought of going to his department to see them, and
therefore deserted from his regiment at dawn on the above-
mentioned day; but, whea he got into the Department of Itapé,
he was apprehended 'by a sergeant of the Urbanos, and taken
before the military commander of the district. The latter had
him placed in irons and sent him to the Adjutant-General’s office,
whence he was remitted to this camp.

‘* He adds that the only motive of his desertion was his desire
to see his children.

‘“ This runaway .is at present a prisoner in the guard-house of

his regiment, in irons.

“Hizario Marco.”’

“ Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.

**By Supreme Order, the deserter, Private Felipe Bogado,
20th Battalion, captured in the Department of Itapé, is sen-
tenced to be.shot.

“F. I. Resquin.”’

*“Camp in Pikysyry, October 23, 1868.

‘““Yn compliance with the above Supreme Order, received with
due respect, the deserter, Private Felipe Bogado, 20th Battalion,
‘has been executed.

X “Peoro Hzrmoza.”’

SYSTEM OF REVENGE. TALE-BEARING.

‘“Long Live the Paraguayan Republic!
““Camp in Paso Pucu, December 21, 1867.

‘““With all due respect, I beg to inform you that Bermarde
Encrito Pinto, prisoner of war, has reported to me that Sergeant
Francisco de Pablo Montero, also a prisoner of war, bad told
him that he had heard Antonio Carballos de Bosa threaten
Antonio Moreira de Sosa to denounce to the authorities his
having, on several occasions, urged him to desert to the enemy’s
camp.

‘‘In consequence whereof I subjected the two intending
deserters to an interrogatory, from which it would appear that
it was Antonio Carballos de Sosa who had first mede the propo-
sition, not Antonio Moreira de Sosa ; and, therefore, as the two
seemed implicated, I ordered both to be secured in irons, with
which § bave the honor to acquaint you, for the ends that may
follow.

‘‘ May God preserve you many years.

- ‘““ MaTias Goysurup.”’

‘““‘Camp in Paso Pucu, December 30, 1867.
*‘To the General Commanding the Southern Division.

‘‘ By Supreme Order, the prisoners of war, Antonio Carballos
de Bosa and Auntonio Moreira de Sosa, who agreed to desert to
the enemy, are sentenced to death, the execution of this
sentenoce being entrusted to Coptain Matias Goyburu.

“F. 1. Resquin.”
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““ Camp in Paso Puca, December 30, 1867.

““The above Supreme Order bas been duly carried out. I
send back to the General Commanding the Southern Division
this order, with a statement of its having been complied with,

in faith whereof I sign this.
“Marias Goysunuv.”

THE EFFECTS OF TERROR. SERVILITY BEFORE LOPEZ.

““ Long Live the Republic of Paraguay!
“ Camp Brite, December 10, 1867.

“To H.E. the Marshal President of the Republic, and Com-
mander-in-Chief of its Armies.

‘“ Most Excelient Sir,—

‘““With due respect I communicate to Y.E. that J have shown
Y.E.’s order to General Resquin, that he should teach me a lesson,
because I am myself so wanting in discernment. The General
did in fact prove so evidently my shortcomings on this occasion
that he has enabled me to see more clearly the benevolence
which Y.E. is never weary of showing towards me; therefore,
most Excelleat Sir, I deplore baving 'had the audacity to ask
Y.E.’s forgiveness, and repent the ingratitude with which I
have corresponded to Y.E.’s kindness, and, prompted by the
dictates of my conscience, I seek from Y.E. justice and not
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pardon, because T am unworthy of it, and because I bave not
known how; te behave myself. I would have undergone any
sacrifice in order to please Y.E. under the circumstances,
and, obeying strictly Y.E.’s orders, have marched forward;
but I did not do so, which I know well, most Excellent Sir, is a
blunder, and a blunder is degrading, unless remedied at once;
therefore, Sir, I only sgk for justice.

“This is all I have to communicate to Y.E. on the present

occasion.
‘* May God preserve Y.E.’s life for many years for the good of

the country.
“ Jurian Nicamomn Gopnox.”

‘‘ December 10, 1867.

“‘For the administration of justice solicited by Major Godoy,
let this be remitted to Brigadier Resquin, in order that he may
appoint a fiscal who, after due investigation, shall dictate the

sentence and report the same.
a« “’n."

BARBAROUS ORDER ABOUT DESERTION.

“ Long Live the Republic of Paraguay!
“Camp in Paso de la Patria, March 25, 1866.

‘¢ By order of H.E. the Marshal President of the Republic, and
Commander-in-Chief of its Armies, the following punishments

are in force :—
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“ For all thoss who fall aslecp on guari.

““1. The officer to be arrested, and reported to H.E.
‘2. The sergeant to receive fifty lashes standing’
‘3. The corporals to receive forty lashes.

¢ §. Privates to receive t wenty-five lashes each.

““ In pase of desertion of a soldier when dctac.lwd [rom his company.

‘“1. The rank and file next t6 him on each side to receive
twenty-five lashes.

2. The officer in charge of the company in which a desertion
takes place, to be arrested and reported to the Supreme Govern-

ment.

““3. The sergeant-to receive fifty lashes, and do duty in his
company for oue month as common soldier and one month as
corporal ; at the expiration of these two months to bée rein-
stated to his former rank of sergeant.

‘4. The corporals to receive forty lashes in cirtle, and do
duty in their companies as common soldiers for two months,
after which to be reinstated to their former rank of corporal.

‘“This order is applicable to troops or detachments told off
from their respective companies for any work or employment
under the charge of their respective officers. :

“F. I. ResQuov.”

DOCUMENTS EXPLAINING THE DE-POPULATION OF
PARAGUAY.

WOMEN DRIVEN ABOUT IN HERDS.

‘¢ Long Live the Republic of Paraguay!
““ Camp in Pikysyry, December 18, 1868.
‘‘ To Captain Bernardo Amarilla.

‘“ By Supreme Order Idespatch to your quarters, under charge
of Ensign Ignacio Romero, and thirty armed men, 900 women,
who are to proceed in the same manmer to the Cerro Aruai,
thence to Paraguari and Caacupé, on the other side of the
Cordillera, with lnstructions to the Commandant of the Depart-
ment of Caacupé to distribute them in the furthest dictricts of
that part of the CordiMlera, where they may be able to sow
beans, andaices, &c. For this purpose you will forward this
order to the Commandants of Paraguari and Caacupé.

‘“May God preserve you many years. :
“F. I. Resquix,”

‘“ Long Live the Republic of Paraguay !

. ““To the Captain Commanding the Detachment of Yuquity and

the Commandants of Paraguari and Csacupé.

‘“ By Supreme Order, I despatch another batch of 840 women
belonging to Villeta, and 170 belonging to different distriets,
in order that, as on a previous occasion, they may be safely
eseorted by thirty cavalry soldiers, well .armed, under charge’
of an officer, from Paso Yuquity to the Cerro Aruai and Parn-
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guari; and if there should be no available forces at either of
these points, as far as the district of Caacupé, with instructions
to the Commandant of the latter place to distribute them, as
soon as they arrive, through the other central districts of that
Cordillera, and see that they be usefully employed in agricul-
ture or other occupations, by which they may provide for their
own sustenance ; for this purpose they are to be allowed what-

ever assistance may be at hand.
“F. 1. ResqQuin.”’

SHOOTING FOR NOT RISING EARLY.

““Camp in Pikysyry, November 13, 1868.

‘“By Supreme Order, Lieutenant Manuel Sayas, 22ad Bat-
talion, is sentenced to be shot, for having refused to get up
for morning parade, for having struck two soldiers that
were then singing in front of his room, and disobeyed the order
sent by his commanding officer of giving up his sword to the
officer of the day, saying that he would deliver it up after

seeing said commanding officer.
“F. I. Resquin.’’
‘“‘ Camp in Nandipay, November 13, 1868.

‘‘ Sentence of death has been duly carried out on Lieutenant

Manuel Sayas, in compliance with the Supreme Order trans-

mitted to'me by you.
““ Manver MosTieL.”’

HORRIBLE!

SHOOTING FOR CONVERSING AND FLOGGING FOR LISTENING.

Deposition of Private Candido Ayala, of the Grenadier Company of

the 3rd Battalion.

‘‘ Long Live the Paraguayan Republic!
. ““Camp in San Fernando, April 4, 1868.

‘‘ Deponent states that being last night round a camp fire, with
other soldiers of his company, he was relating to them the say-
ings and offers of the enemy, which he heard when doing duty in
the vanguard, under the ordersof Major Benite Rolan, whenever
they came within sight of each other. On one occasion some of
the enemy said—* Come among us; throw away your ponchos
of hide; here we live well, and you shall want nothing ; forget
your President, that old big-bellied Indian.” At this moment
the Commanding Officer, who was near, overheard these words,
and immediately rebuked him, saying—*Be silent; who has
authorised you to refer the words of those wretches, and what
can they say or impute to our illustrious Marshal, who is the
handsomest and most graceful sovereign in all the American

Continent?’ Deponent was then asked by said officer what
E -
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induced him to refer such things, which were nothing but

injurious persenal attacks upon our Lord President, and he said
that he repeated what he had heard without any evil thought,
not knowing that he was incurring blame.

‘“ The undersigned ordered deponent to be put into irons and
imprisoned in the guard-house, where he at present lies; and
reports the circumstance to the Commanding Officer of the
Division.

¢“Juriaxn D. Gopoy.’”

““Camp in Tebicuary, April 4, 1868.

“By order of H.E. the Marshal President of the Republic,
and Commander-in-Chief of its Armies, the accused Private
Candido Ayala, 3rd Battalion, is sentenced to be shot, and each
of the soldiers of his company who listened to his conversatiom
are to receive fifty lashes. The execution of this sentence
is entrusted to the Major commanding said corps, who, im
reporting its due fulfilment, will state the names of those who
have been flogged.

‘“F. 1. Resquin.”

““Camp in San Fernando, April 4, 1868.

‘‘ In compliance with the above Supreme Order, whic¢h I have
received with due respect, I ordered sentence of deathom Private
Candido Ayala, 3rd Battalion, for the cause above stated, to be
carried out this very day, also, that fifty lashes should be applied
to’ Sergeant Faustino Sanabria, Corporals José Figueredo, Blas
Gimenez, and Privates Baltazar Medina, Matilde Pino, Tomas
Duarte, Cecilio Maciel, and Canuto Galeano, who all were
listening when Ayala was speaking so irreverently. Private
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Canuto Galeano was, by mistake of the corporal, punished with
only forty-nine lashes, and I ordered the number tobe completed!
to fifty, which being done, he turned round, as if offended,.
asking to be punished more if the number was not yet com-
pleted, for which display of pride I had him puaished with
twenty-five lashes more, and placed in the stocks.

‘“ All of which I respectfully beg to report to you.

“ Joriax Nicanor Gopoy.”

THE TABLETS OF BLOOD OF.F. 8. LOPEZ.
SIX MONTHS' EXECUTIONS.
EVIDENCE OF THE MOST ATROCIOUS TYRANNY.

Here follows a serial list of the murders committed, and the
tortures applied, by Lopez, from July to December, 1868, taken
from his own bloody archives. They reach the figure of 558
victims. Yet, no mention is made of his brother, of Minister
Berges, of the Oriental Blancos his friends, of the Bishop—all
shot--and of the rest of the prisoners, of whom only fifteen
escaped. No mention is made of his own mother's exile, of the
imprisonment of his brother Venancio, of his own sisters, and

other ladies flogged, &c., &c., &c.
E2
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It will be seen that these 558 victims were condemuned upon
simple orders of Lopez, without cause, trial, or sentence of &
military tribunal, aud all of them, both foreigners, prisoners of
war, and Paraguayans, styled criminal ‘‘ traitors,’’ on the mere
assertion of Lopez. That out of them some were shot, some
lanced, others bayonetted, and those who died in prison were
tortured by hunger, hard work, heavy irons, and the frightful
torment called ‘‘cepo Uruguayano,'’ which even surpasses the
satanic inventions of the Inquisition.

Who is the real ‘‘criminal traitor?’ 1Is it any of these

wretched 558 victims 2—No.
The *“‘criminal traitor’’ is Solano Lopez and his satelites,

and those who endeavor to screen him from human justice.

The *‘eriminal traitor’ is Francisco Solano Lopez, who has
surpassed Nero, Caligula, Commodus, and Rosas.

No.—The ** ecriminal traitor’”’ to mankind, and to God, is he
who has not respected either sex or old age, not even his own
mother, neither children, nor God’s ministers. It is Francisco

Solano Lopez.

RESQUIN'S DIARY.

Camp in San Fernando May 31, 1868:

By Supreme Command, the deserters, Domingo Caballero and
Juan Lopez, soldiers of the 13th Bnlmllon captured in the woods
(the former having two wounds, one inflicted by himself and the
other by his eaptors), have been exccuted in Villa Franca.

June 17 —By Supreme Command, the Brazilian Juan de Silva,
a spy of the epemy, was exccated. Also, for desertion, the
artilleryman from Tebicuary, José Delvalle.

June 19.—The traitor Silvestre Silva died; his death wasa

natural one.
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Also, by Supreme Command, the following traitors from the
capital were executed : B*ﬂcbm Homen, Viceante Cabrera,
!Anpohnarlo Diaz Nicolas Medina, Gregorio Fcrrclm and Felix

az

June 22.—By Superior Order, the deserter Antonio Babadilla,
of the 43rd Battalion, was executed

Also, by Supreme Order, the following traitors from the
capital were executed: Juan Benitez, Antonio Barbosa, Fran-
cisco Pereira, Pio Ayala, Bernardo Pereira, Dionisio Gonzales,
and José Devane.

June 23.—By Supreme Order were executed in irons the
traitors Soto Diaz, Domingo Talavera, Bartolomé Mayo, Gaspar
Morinigo, Miguel Gimenez, Tomas Vasquez, José Maria Quintana,
and German Egusquiza, all brought from the capital. ;

June 28.—By Supreme Order were executed the accused
traitors Vicente Ortigoza, Tomas Pedroso, Eugenio Caceres,
Martin Morales, Tomas Cardoso, Galo Iturbe, Jos¢ Manuel Otazu,
and Viceute Lopez, all brought from the capital. Died, of
natural death, in prison, the Brazilian deserter Pedro Antonio
Alves.

July 1.—By Supreme Order, the deserter Victoriano Zaragque,
of the carps of scouts, was executed.

July 5.—Died of natural death, in prison, the accussed traitor
cx-Licutenant-Colonel Juan Gomez ; also, the accused traitor
Sotero Torres, cavalry soldier.

July 6.—By Supreme Order, the deserter Eugenio Numez,
private of the I9th Regiment, wns esecuted.

July 7.—Died of natural death, in irons, the accused Emilio
Neumann, a German, from Hamburg.

July 9.—Died of natural death, in irons, the aceused Pablo
Beccari, an Italian; also, by Supreme Order, the deserter
Basilio Rivarola, of the 23rd Battalion, was executed.

July 13.—By Supreme Order were executed the following
accused traitors: Juan Bautista Lescano, Marcelino Marque,
Salvador Martinez, Zacarias Pereira, José Ignacio Garay, Manuel
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Cardoso, José Tomas Martinez, Serapio Escobar, Roman Insfrau,
Juan de la Cruz Vera, Manuel Viera, Corporal Angel Alderete,
Basilio Villalva,. Nemesio Benitez, José Luis Botella, Manuel
Montero Braga, Francisco Magallanes, Antonio Carlos da Oliveira,
and Julio Bautista Dacosta.

July 14.—By Supreme Command, the accused traitor Cornet
Miguel Gayoso, was executed.

July 15.—Died, the accused traitor Juan Lenzi Colomno,
Englishman. Died, the accused traitor Manuel Madruga, Por-
toguese. Died, the accused traitor Policarpo Gallo, Para-
guayan. Died, the accused traitor Trifon Canete, Paraguayan.

July 16.—Died, the accused traitor Buenaventura Caceres,
Paraguayan. The accused traitor Miguel Antonio Elorday,
Paraguayan, was executed.

July 17.—Died, the accused traitor Manuel Bocanegra, Italian.
Died, the accused traitor José Bedoya, Correntino.

July 18.—The accused traitor Tomas Pisarrelo was executed.
The accused traitor Gregorio Escobedo was executed.

July 19.—Died, the accused traitor Isidoro Troche, Para-
guayan. Died, the accused traitor Domingo Purniez.

July 20.—Died, the accused traitor Miguel Bergues, Para-
guayan.

July 21.—Died, the accused traitor Agustin Elezdui, Spa-
niard. Died, the accused traitor Justo Benitez, Paraguayan.

July 23.—Died, the accused traitor Clemente Veloto, Para-
guayan.

July 24.—Died, the accused traitor Raimundo Ortiz, Para-
guayan. Died, the accused traitor Estevan Luisaga, Para-
guayan. Died, the accused traitor Agustin Piaggio, Italian.

July 25.—Died, the accused traitor Carlos Orrute. Died, the
accused traitor Ignacio Galarraga, Spaniard. Died, the accused
traitor Escolastico Garesse, Paraguayan. Died,the accused traiter
José de C. Fernandez, Paraguayan.

July 28.—Died, the accused traitors Estevan ldedusis and
Autonio Susini, Italians.
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July 29.—Died, the accused traitor José Angelo, Paraguayan.
By Supreme Order, were executed the accused traifors Santiago
Ozcariz and Manuel Cabral, Paraguayans, and Candido ‘Vascon-
cellos, Portuguese.

July 30.—Died, the accused tiaitors Bernardo Artaza and
Firmin Gonzalez, Paraguayans.

July 31.—Died, the accused traitor Francisco Rosas.

August §.—Died, the acoused traitors Manuel Coelho, Portu-
guese ; Abdon Molinas, Paraguayan ; and Pedro Anglade, French.

Augaust 5.—Died, the accused traitor Sinforoso Caceres, Cor-
rentino.

August 6.—By Supreme Order, the criminal deserter Eusebio
Herrera, Argentine, was executed; and the acecused traitor
Vicente Valle, Paraguayan, died.

August 7.—Dled, the accused traitor Salvador l’ig-eudo
Paraguayan.

August 8.—Died, the accused traitors Luciano Baez, Para-
guayan, and Juan Fusoni, Italian.

Angust 9.—The following accused traitors weie executed :
Americo Varela, Angel Silva, Antomio Arna; Antenio Tomé,
Antonio Rebaudi, Antonio Guanes, Antonio Taboas, Antonio
Ivala, Aristides Dupart, Baldomero Ferreira, Benjamin ‘Sauterre,
Cayetano Barbosa, Eugenio Maten Aguiar (Spamiard), Faustino
Martinez, Felicirno Hermosa, Framcisco Canteros, Francisco
Samaniego, Francisco Sotera, Fermin Bazaraz, Gregorio Arguelles,
Inocencio Gregorio, Isidoro Arriola, José& Caravia; Jogé Valle,
Juan Schamper, Juan Fusoni (this last"died a natural death a
moment before being executed), Julinn Rodriguez, Julian Aquino,
Luis Avila, Martin Candia, Nicolas Casales, Nicolas Susini,
Nicolas Delfino, Pedro Falcon, Pelayo Azcona, Roman Franco,
Roman Capdevila, Serapio Pucheta, Venancio Uribe; Vicente
Servin, and Vicente Galarza.

August 10.—Died, the accused traitor Juan Pldi"l, Argmtine

August 14.—Died, the accused traitors Agustin. Viera and
Eliseo Galeano, Paraguayans.
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August 15.—Died, the accused traitor preshyter José Maria
Patino.

August 17.—Died, the accused traitors Pedro Burgos, Para-
guayan ; and Coriolano Margues, Spaniard.

August 18.—Died, the accused traitor Lieutenant Juan Ca-
ballero.

August 19.—Died, the accused traitors Damasio Cuevas,
Paraguayan; and Alfredo Levret, French.

August 20.—Died, the accused traitors Florencio Uribe,
Spaniard ; and Benjamin Urbieta, Paraguayan.

August 22.—The following accused traitors were executed :
Cipriano Duprat, Andres Urdapilleta, Carlos Recio, Constantino
Barletto, Julio Carranza, Vicente Barletto, Sebastian Ibarra,
Antomo Oneto, Lisardo Baca, Gregorio Vera, Narciso Lascerre,
Felipe Milleres, Juan Vera, Alejandro Pinto de Souza, Nicolas
Jubelini, Federico Anayitarte, Tristan Roca, Benigno Gutierrez,
Raimundo Barraza, Leandro Barrios, Roman Silvero, Honorio
Grillo, Mateo Muso, Ignacio Ruiz, Feliz Garcia, Feliz Arriola,
Pastor Gonzalez, Juan Baeco, Juan Bautista Duré, Leopoldo
Anglade, Francisco Cardoso, Miguel Lombardi, José Wino,
Dowingo Fernandez, Federico Gaciaga, Juan Gregorio Valle,
Miguel Perujo, Manuel Espinola, Feliz Candia, Joaguin Fernan-
dez, Enrigue Tuvo, Lorenzo Graz, Francisco Molinas, Desiderio
Arias, Juan Andreu, Egidio Ferreiro, José Remondini, and Pio
Pozzoli. Total, 48. '

The following accused traitors were executed on the same
day : Francisco Rodriguez Larreta, Narciso Prado, James
Manlove, Ulises Martinez, Francisco Laguna, José¢ Garay, José
Maria Astigarrago, William Stark, Bernardino Ferreira, Nicolas
Troya, Leonardo Sion, S8alvador Echenique, Santiago Delucchi,
Pablo Kert, Jogé Rustei, Joaquin Vargas Aldado, Celso Correa,
Domingo Rojas Aranda, Enrique Garcia, Pilar Guaicochea, Juan
Batalla, Pascual Bedoya, Juan Ferresi, Gregorio Molinas, Roque
Cespedes, Marcelino Gomez, Francisco Vidal, José Rodriguez,
Joaguin Romaguera, Pedro Polleti, José¢ Maria Sancedo, José
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Vicente Urdapilleta, Angel Ugale, Aurelio Manchuet, Guines
Ranstei, Bernardino Cabral, Faustino Rodriguez (presbyter), ex-
cept Nicolas Troja, who died before execution Total, 37.

August 23.—Died, the accused traitor Captain Roman Boga,
and by Supreme Order the following accused traitors were
executed : John Watts, Natalicio Martinez, Benigno Rosas, Luis
Echevarrieta, Teodoro Gauna, Marcos Pernabe, Celestino Cattim,
José Sanyur, Basiliano Lampini, Enrique Fenaus, Jos¢ Haller,
Charles Tevite, Alejandro Galeano, Francisco Sora, Franeisco
Balbuena, Bartolomé¢ Albertoni, Esteban Meza, Antonio Lucero,
Aureliano Capdevila, Melchor Costa (all foreigners), and Mariano
Marques, Augustin’ Pires, Monuel Fernandez (the last three
Paraguayans). Total, 23.

August 24.—Died, the accused traitor Jesus Lopez, country
man. The following traitors were executed : Clemente Pereira,
Martin Vera, Aniceto Duarte, Casimiro Aquino, Pablo Rojas,
Francisco Roman, Miguel Garcia (Parsguayans), and Estifanio
Palacios, Juan Moreira, Maximo Rodriguez, José Loco (foreign-
ers). . Total, 11.

August 26.—The following accused traitors were put
to death: Francisco Fernandez, Paraguaysn, ex-major;
Captain Miguel Haedo, Lieutemant Amnastasio Vallejos, Ensign
José Villasanti, Ensign Dionisio Villalba, citizen Alejo Acuna,
citizen Pablo Gonzalez, citizen Francisco Frutos, citizen Matias
Montiel Italian, Silverio Botea, and the forcigners Antonio
Fonseca and Hilario Santanna. Total, 14.

By Supreme Order the following accused traitors were put to
death: José Maria Brugues, ex-Colonel Manucl Nunez,
Major Vicente Mora, Lieutenant Ignacio Ramos, Major
Candido Mora, Ensign Rosario Bobadilla, Captain Migucl Rosas,
citizen Carlos Riveros, Manuel Cespedes, ex-Presbyter Vicente
Bazan, Fidelio Davila, Juan Morles, Teodoro Vera, Ensign Jero-
nimo Delfin, Juan Madera, Sisto Pereira, Angel Cacens, Antonio
Nin Reyes, and Antonio Vasconcellos. Total, 19,

By Supreme Order the following accused traitors were put to
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death: Maunuel Trete, Pablo Seracho, Blas Recalde, Juan Antonio
Rodriguez, Francisco Decoud, Valentin Bargas, Prudencio Ayala,
and Valeriano Ayala, Total, 8.

Camp in Cumbarity, September 4.

Died, the accused traitors Francisco Candia, Lieutenant Jos¢
Martinez, and citizen Dionisio Figueredo.

September 5.—Died, in prison, the traitor Narcisco Nunez,
ex-Justice of Peace of Villeta.

September 6.—Died, in prison, the accused traitors Anacleto
Gonzalez, Correntino, and Joseph Font, North American.

September 9.—Pied, the accused traitors the soldier Nicolas
Samabria, Paraguayan, and Timoteo Correa, Brazilian.

September 10.—The spies Vincente Amarrilla and Inocencio
Gonzalez, Paraguayan soldiers, were bayoneted.

September 11.—Died, the accused traitors Gustavo Haman,
German ; Licutenant Patricio Gorostiaga, Argentine; and
Antonio da Silva, Brazilian.

September 12.—Died, the accused traitor Ensign Tomas
Cespedes, and citizen Roman Candia, Paraguayans.

Beptember 13.—Died, in prison, Licutenant-Colonel Gaspar
Campos, prisoner of war, and the traitor Gabriel Coria, Argen-
tine.

List of prisoners who died onm the transit from San Fernando to
Cumbarity, from August 27 to September 3.

Juan Pastore, Pedro Talena, Antonio Charman, foreigners;
the traitor Jorge Kes, Swiss ; Manuel Antonio del Espiritu Santo,
the traitor Isidoro Martinez, Mexican; José Cayetano Beurro,
Carlos Bueno, Jorge Daly, Antonio José de Mora, Pedro Lagarde,
Andres Gonzalez, Eleuterio Enero, Manuel Pena, José Vicente
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Jestono, José Maria Castro, Andreas Ibanez, Belivian traitor ;
Eastaquio Uriarte, Manuel Rivera, Juan Almayoa, Roberto Casi-
miro, Valentin Benitez, Raymundo Aquino, Manuel Borges,
Miguel Silva, and Ensign José Gavilan. Total, 28.

September 14.—Lieutenant Alejo Ybero was bayoneted, and
the accused traitors Natan Marischavel, Spaniard, and Carlos
Moreno, Argentine, died. Colonel Bernardino Denis was set at
liberty. Under date of September 4, the deserters from the
enemy, the prisoners of war, and prisoners for other reasons, to
the number of 190, were takem from prison to work in the
trenches.

September 15.—Died, the accused traitors Jacinto Duarte,
Paraguayan, and Balthazar de las Carreras, Uruguayan.

September 16.—Died, the accused traitors Augustin Trigo,
Sebastian Insfrau, Eufemio Mendez, Antonio Ortiz, all Para-
guayans, and Wenceslao José Maria, Brazilian.

September 18.—Died, the accused traitor Justo Caceres,
Paraguayan. The following criminals were taken to work in
the trenches: Simon da Silva, Antonio Luis de Noraes, Inocencio
Monteiro de Mendoza, José da Silva, Jos¢ da Costa Leite, José
Justiniano, Indalecio da Souza, Manuel dos Santos, Manuel
Antonio da 8ilva, and Mangel Carneiro, Brazilians(10in number),
and Roman Lescano, Antonio Sanchez, and Roque Sanchez, Ar- -
gentines. Total, 13. , :

September 20.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Mauricio
Gonzalez, Paraguayan, and the Brazilian deserter Juan Suarez
de Araujo.

. September 21.—Died, in prison, the traitors Fulgencio Gon-
zalez and Antonio Quintana, Paraguayans; Justino Lescano,
Argentine ; and Antonio da Silva, Brazilian.

September 22.—Died, the accused traitors Francisco Pintos

and José Vega, Paraguayaus.
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Camp in Pikysyry, Scptember 22, 1868.

By Supreme Order, the soldier José Segovia, deserter from
the 3rd Regiment of Artillery, captured in the district of Ita,
was executed Thirty dollars will be given to Police-Sergeant
Luciano Recidias for his zeal in capturing the deserter from the
3rd Regiment of Artillery, José Segovia a present which the
most excellent Marshal President of the Republic and General
in-Chief of its Armies has deigned to grant him.

F. I. Resquiy.

September 23.—Died, the traitor Secbastian Salduondo, Para-
guayan. f

September 24.—Died, the Paraguayan traitor Ramon Marcos ;
put to the bayonet the chief of Yuty, José Lino Torres; Private
Dolores Caballero, Brazilinn, and José Vega.

By Superior Order, the culprit Lazaro Gonzalves, of Yaguaron,
was set at liberty.

September 25.—Died, in prison, the accused traitors Juan
Rodriguez, Brazilian, and Pedro Merolles, Italian.

September 26 —Died, the accused traitor Joaquin Patifio,
Paraguayan ; Antonio de Souza, Brazilian ; a deserter from Ya-
guaron was put to the bayonet.

September 27 .—Died, in prison, thg accused José H. Varelna,
Italian. Sent to work in the trenches the prisomers brought
from Yabebiry, Privates Deodato José dos Santos, Manuel Isidoro
da Silva, and Pedro Leginaldo, Brazilians. Died, the accused
traitor Facundo Salduondo, Paraguayan. By Superior Order
the following accased traitors were put to death: Paraguayans
ex-Major Matias Sanabria, ex-Captain Ignacio Garay, ex-Lieuten-
ant Elias Ortellado, ex-Lieutenant Francisco Sosa, ex-Presbyter
Martin Serapio Servin, ex-Presbyler Juan Evangelio Barrios,
ex-Sergeant Dolores Vera, Bernardo Ortellado, Gumesindo Be-
nitez, Manuel Leandro Colunga, Zacarias Rodriguez, Vincente
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Dentella, Segunde Colunga, Isaac Alvarez, Francisco Ojeda,
Julian Jacques, Matins Ferrera, Francisco Zelada, José Mariano
Servin, Daniel Valignte, Miguel Ramirez, Jorge Centurion, José
Franco. Antonio de las Carreras, Oriental. Brazilians—
Francisco Javier de Matos, Juan Fernandez Contaduria, José
Gomezx Maciel, Francisco Eleuterio de Souza. Italians—Juan
Beltiano, Francisco 1Invernisi, Juan Vsicaba, Julio Vega.
Spaniards—Vicente Reina, Francisco Velas, José Maria Vilas,
Enrigue Reina, IsidroCordina. Argentines—Ventura Gutierrez,
José Cateura, Calisto Lezcano, Juan de la Cruz Lopez, Chrisos-
tome Carrano. Frenchmen-—Leonardo Ruz, Miguel Alderey,
José Philibert, German—Octavio Fulgraff. Russian—Fran-
cisco Ordano. Total, 47.

September 28.—Taken from prison to work in the trenches,
the criminals Nicolas Lopez, Simon Vallejos, Correntinos ; Luis
Bernardo Mare Italian; José Maria Gomez, Santiago Romero,
Justo Faria, -Argentines; Caledonio Nanua, S8paniard ; Celestino
Leite de Oliveira, Francisco Joaquin, Ludovico Barraso, Brazil-
ians. Total, 10,

By Buperior Order, the following accused traitors were put
to death: Maximo Falcon, Pablo Colman, Paraguayans; Cecilio
Vallejos, Correntino. Total, 3.

By Superjor Order, the following prisoners were set at liber-
ty: Presbyters Facundo Gill and Mariano Aguiar, Sergeant
Buenaventura Bordon, Paraguayans. Total, 3.

September 28.—Died, in prison, the Brazilian soldier Manuel
Gonzalves.

September 30.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Tomas
Gill, Paraguayan.

October [.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Sergeant
Roque Rivas, Paraguayan.

October 2.—Died, the accused traitor Andres Garcia, Para-

guayan.
October 3.—Died, the accused traitor Vicente Robledo, Ar-

gentine.
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October 4.—By Superior Order, the Brazilian prisonerof war,

taken at Surnbify, Captain Joaquin Gomex Peso, was set at
liberty. Died, the accused traitor ex-Ensign Antonio Santa

Cruz. Paraguayan.

October 6.—By Superior Order, the prisoners of war Major
Maximiliano Versen, German, and Liecutenant Jeronimo de
Amorim Valporte, Brazilian, were set at liberty. Died, the
accused traitor Marcelino Sanchez, Paraguayan.

October 7.—Died, the accused prisoner of war Ensign Severo
Gonzalez, Argentine. Died, the accused traitor Juan Carlos
Lezensi, Frenchman.

October 8.—Died, the accused traitor ex-Eusign Manuel Baez,
Paraguayan. Died, the accused Brazilian prisoner José Suarez.

October 11.—Died, the aeccused traitor José Riveros, Para-
guayan.

October 12.—Died, the accused traitor Vicente Quadro, Italian.

October 19 —By Superior Order, the criminal traitors who
deserted the flag-bearer of the 9th Battalion were executed:
Private Luis Alcaraz, 30th Regiment, and Ramon Paredes. Died,
the accused traitor Private José Palacios, Paraguayan.

October 21.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Fernando

José Moreira, Brazilian.
October 25.—Died, the accused traltor Ribeiro Costa Leite,

Brazilian.
October 28.—Died, the accused - traitor Tomé da Costa,

Brazilian. ’
October 29.—Died, the accused traitor Juan Moran Bueno,

Brazilian.
November 5.—Died, the accused traitor Miguel Patino, Para-

guayan.
Norember 7.—Died, the accused traitor Benito Alvarez, Para-

guayan.
November 8.—Died, in prison, the accused traitors José

Manuel de Campos, Brazilian; Cipriano Gonzalez, Argentine;
José Maria Franco, Paraguayan.
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November 9.—Died, of pestilence (cholera) in the hospital, the
accused traitor Valentin Fernandez, Paraguayan. Died, of
cholera in the hospital, the accused traitor De la Cruz Canete,
Paraguayan. Died, the accused traitor Sinforiano Martinez,
Paraguayan.

November {0.—Died, of cholera in the hospital, the accused
traitor Buenaventura Basquez, ex-Justice of Carapegu4, Died,
in prison, the accused traitoress Maria de Jesus Egusquiza,

Paraguayan.

List of eriminals killed in the trenches.

Paraguayans—Mariano Lopez, Francisco Sanchez, Alejo Beni-
tez, Sebastian Ferreira, and Buenaventara Soria—5.

Argentines—Santiago Romero, Cornelio S8alazar, Luis Soto,
Aniceto Corche, José Perecz, Simon Romero, Roque Mansilla,
Manuel Sanchez, Angel Aguero, Cipriano Alonso, Basilio Canoma,
Marcelo Herrera, José Torres, Lazaro Chiarini, Sartiago Avila,
Andres Atuno, Primitivo Sosa, José Montero, Manuel Alvarez,
Isidoro Aguero, Lino Tarella, Nicolas Vera, Antonio Sanchez,
Baldomero Artaza, Francisco Aguero, Inocencio Mendoza, Juan
Larrea, Zavino Pari, Ramon Mansilla, Martin Acevedo, Ramon
Perez, Celedonio® Fernangez, Esteban Guanes, and Maria
Gomez—34.

Brazilians—José Costa, Antonio Francisco, 8imon dos Santos,
José¢ Tertuliann, Manuel Sosa, Joaquin Soares, José Lucas, José
do Nascimento, Vicente Correa, Lazaro Gonzalves, Joaquin de
Souza, Emilio Alves, Francisco Pende, Vicente Fernandez, José
Lautela, Basilio Dinis, Manuel dos Santos, Manuel Antonio, José
Justiniano, Felipe da Silva—20.

Italian—Juan Canelo—1.

Total, 60.
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November 12.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor ex-Pres-
byter Antomio Corvalan. Died, in prison, the criminals Candido
Centurion, Paragnayan traitor; Buenaventura Maria de Mattos,
Brazilian, deserter. Died, of cholera in the hospital, the accused
traitors ex-Presbyter Santiago Narvaez, Pedro Barrias, and
Private Francisco Ensina, Paraguayans.

November 13.—Died, of cholera in the hospital, the Argentine
prisoner of war Captain Antonio Falcon. Died, in prison, the
Argentine prisoner of war Lieutenant Mauricio Soto.

November 14.—Died, in prisen, the deserter from theenemy,
the Drazilian solder Juan Pereira Campos.

November 15.—Died, of cholera in the hospital, the Brazilian
deserter Private Raimundo Coelho. By Supreme Order, dated
the 12th, the criminal Exequiel Duré, ex-Ensign of the 18th
Battalion, was executed.

November 17.—By Supreme Order, the accused traitor Gustavo
Guion de Libertad, Frenchman, was liberated and sent to the
capital.

November 21.—By Supreme Order, the following criminal
traitors, spies of the enemy, were put to death: Private Juan
Gonzalez, of Carapegua, and Basilio Escobar.

Died, in prison, the accused traitor Simon Conde, Correntino.

November 22.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Saturnino
Tavares de Silva, Brazilian.

November 23.—Died, in prison, the accusgd traitor, Juan
Cabrisa. Died, the Brazilian prisonefof war Private Joaquin
Manuel, Concepcion.

November 29.—Died, in prison, the accused traitor Eduardo
Barias, ex-licutenant of cavalry.

December 1.—Died, the Brazilian soldier, prisoner of war
Francisco Juan da Silva. Died, the accused traitor Vicente
Gomez, Paraguayan.

December 10.—Delivered as prisoners to be conveyed to the
exterior, the traitors Porter Cornelio Bliss, North American,
and George F. Mastermann, Englishman.
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December 1 1.—The following criminals were put to death:
Captain Andres Maciel, Pareguayan traitor; Licutenant#Francisco
Ortellado and - Igpacio Ozeda, Paraguayan traitors. Presbyters
—José J. Talavera, Autonio Valdovines, and Juan Arza, Para-
guayan traitors; S8oldiers—Bernabe Sanchez, Donatp Lescano,
Aniceto Cocte, Francisco S8anchez, Sebastian Alonso, Paraguayan
traitors. Citizens—Francisco Samchez, Victoriano Cabrisa, Ig-
nacio Vera, Basilio Pereira, Gaspar Lopez, Eleuterio Barbosa,
Luciane Decoud, Simon Cespedes, Paraguayan traitors; Colonel
Telmo Lopez, traitor, Argentine, from Santa Fé, Private indi-
viduals—Malaquias de Oliveira, Francisco Zalar de Oliveira,
Juan A. Deante, Brazilians; José Maria Caceres, Correntino ;
Carlos Ulrich, Leon de Delme, French; Pedro Nolasco Conde,
Correntino; Colonel Ulpiano Sotero, Correntino, prisoner of war.
Lieutenants—Joaquin de Silva Guzman, Brazilian ; José Romero,
Argentine, prisoners of war. Ensign Paulino Baez, Correntino,
prisoner of war. BSergeant Francisco Barreira, Brazilian, pri-
soner of war. Corporals—Francisco José de Oliveira, Jose
Francisco de Amorim, prisoners of war. Soldiers—José Bar-

roso, Manuel A. dos Santos, Antonio Manuel Rodriguez, Antonio
José da Silva, prisoners of war. Deserters—José Porciam,
Francisco Tavares (spy), Martin Machado, Brazilians. Raimundo

“Ruiz, Argentine, prisoner of Wwar. Ireneo Alvarez, Uruguayan,

prisoner of war. Honorio Camba, French ; José Espiritu Santo
Rodriguez, Serafin Gomez de Moura, José Ferreira Brandad,
Joaquin Gonzalves, José Tomas da Costa, Brazilian prisoners of

war. Total, 49.
December 1 1.—Criminals set at liberty: Colonel Venancio

Lopez and Presbyter Eugenio Bogado, attached to the staff.
December 14.—Lanced to death, the traitor Lieutenant S8im-

plicio Lynch.
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ZOFFICIAL DECLARATION OF A BRAZILIAN OFFICER.

The following account of the sufferings endured by Major
Da Cunha Mattos, during fourteen months’ captivity in Paraguay,
will be read with interest. It is a summary of the official report
addressed by him to the Brazilian Minister of War, the nature of
which document gives authenticity to the horrifying details
contained in it.

““On the same day on which I fell a prisoner I was taken to
Paso Pucu, and, after a slight interrogatory, I was locked up in
a rancho by myself, and with a sentry in sight.

“¢On the 4th of November, early in the morning, Lieutenant-
Colonel Hirio (a Spaniard in Lopez’ service), came to see me,
and, by order of Lopez, requested me to make a fall declaration
of the amount of our force, of the Brazilian resources, and any
other information that could tell on the prolongation of the war,
stating that the right of war justified this demand. 1 replied,
that although I knew something of the right of war, I never
-wmemembered reading anything of the kind, and that I thought it
was recognised 1n modern warfare that such declarations had no
‘weight whatever, and, moreover, I stated that the information
.asked of me was beyond my knowledge, because as a soldier it
+was not my business to inquire what means the Government was

able to dispose of. Colonel Hirio was in no way pleased with
my reply, and insisted that I should write down something. 1§
repeated I could not give the information required, but would
obey the order, endeavoring to keep as near the truth as pos—
sible. In fact I did write Something. It would be impossible
for me to reproduce now exactly what I wrote; but, among
other things, I stated that I did not know what means our
country could dispose of, but that I could assert that the armxy
was paid regularly, and that on the 2nd of November X had
received my pay for October, and that up to that date the
soldiers received full rations and were well attended. With
regard to the strength of our army I stated the truth, at least
what was reported to exist then. I said something also about
the organisation of the army.

“Two or three days afterwards I had a visit from Captain
Palacios (brother of the Bishop of Paraguay), who told me that
Lopez was not satisfied with my declaration, and said that ¥
wrote much but said little.

‘“1 meanwhile was kept in the same room, and received daily
very scanty food—a small amount of meat dirlilv prepared,
without salt, and musty farina.

‘“ On the 18th of November, Palacio came to see me agaim,
and said that [ could go out, but was not allowed to be out of
sight of the guard.

‘1 must not omit to say that I had no news of the officers and
men of my corps, from whom I had been separated at the time-
of my imprisonment.

“ On the 19th of November I was called to Palacio’s quarters;
and asked whether I knew that an officer of my corps had
escaped, to which I replied that I was completely ignorant of it.
Palacio said it was Captain John Peter Correa, and that it
showed great ingratitude on his part, seeing bow well he was
treated. I learned afterwards that Correa was in a worse con-
dition than myself, kept almost naked and without even a hide

for a bed.
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““On the same day, several Brazjlian, Oriental, and Argentine
prisoners and deserters were brought to the guard mext to my
room, who, after being flogged, were put in irons, taken before
the fiscal, and again flogged. I was ignorant of the motive of
these barbarous proceedings, which were repeated an the 20th
and 21st. Among these poor victims I saw several soldiers of
my corps, whom I could scarcely recognise, such was the change
produced in them by hunger and the bad treatment they had
received.

““On the 21st Captain Correa was apprchended again by the
Paraguayans, outside the lines of Curupaiti. He was taken im
irons to the guard from whence he escaped, where he was kept
with his face turned to the east in the morning, and to the west
in the afternoon. A few days afterwards he disappeared, and
T heard nothing more of him until February, 1868, in Humaita,
when I was told he died of discase due to the atrocious treat-
mecnt he had been expesed to.

*‘ The sad scenes I had been a witness to during several days,
and my moral and physical sufferings, affected me so much that
in the beginning of December I was attacked with diarrheea of
blood, which prostrated me so much that I could not stand. I
was then removed to the hospital, under guard, and accompanied
by a spy, who uever left me. There I met, thank Heaven, the
humane Dr. William Stewart, who tended me with such care
that he saved my life. In the hospital I learned that among the
prisoners who had been executed was Count Machado, of the Bra-
zilian cavalry. Before being shot he protested loudly against the
proceedings of the tyrant, who caused him to be executed on
slmple suspicion, and without a single proof of his culpability.
I remained in the hospital, under the care of Dr. Stewart, till
the ‘beginning of February. On the 8th or 9th of that
month he advised my being removed to the hospital at
Huomaita.

““ On the same afternoon I was placed in a cart,and we started
in the direction of that fort, but as the roads were in & frightful
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state, we only arrived at 11 o’clock at night. The night was
very dark, and I was surrounded by a strong guard, and it
appeared to me I was being taken to the scaffold. Fortunately,
however, my presence of mind never deserted me, and God
gave me sufficient courage to stand all. Suddenly the cart came
to a stop. and an oflicer informed me that we had reached our
destination, and that I was to get down. Fatigued by the long
journey, and still suffering from weakness and my late severe
illness, I hastened to get off the cart, hoping to find some rest
and comfort; but my flesh crept, and my hair stood on end, on
seeing that the hospital was a dreary and stinking dungeon, full
of dirt and filth, and where every now and then were heard the
groans and lamentations of the unfortunate sufferers, who
begged to God for death to free them from a life of so much
misery. When I was installed in this infernal habitation, T
found it impossible to conciliate sleep, and I had not been many
hours with my wretched companions before falling a prey to the
same miseries as themselves. [ found myself covered with lice
and every kind of disgusting insects that are sure to breed in a
place where the accumulation of people is greater than the
accommodation, without any regard to decency or cleanliness.
Diseases of all sorts were prevalent ; cholera made havoe, and
hunger, and sometimes thirst, decimated the number of the
unfortunate dwellers in that horrible prison. - Men of all classes
and conditions were brought to a level, officers were treated
the same as common soldiers, and I saw myself surrounded by
thieves, murderers, deserters, &c.

““ Among the prisoners I met were Captain Cavaleanti de
Albuquerque, Augusto José Alves, Lieutenant Gusmao, Campos,
and Pesson. They related to me the sufferings they had
endured in Paso Pucu, the greatest being caused by hunger, as -
they were only served with food sufficient tv save them from
starving. A few days afterwards Alves succumbed, under an

attack of diarrheea.
“ The vemerable Brazilian Consul, Barbosa, told me that during




the three years in which he had beena prisoner, he had seceived
nothing beyond meat; without salt and water. Consul Barbosa,
as well as all the Brazilians whose death I witnessed, gave up
their ghost with tranquillity ; it was never customary to afford
spiritual consolation to the dying.

“A few days after this, on the 19th, at dawn, a great bom-
bardment aunounced a movement on the part of the Allies. A
few moments afterwards we saw our ironclads breaking through
the Humaita batteries. Later on, we learnt that while this was
bhappening, our infantry had taken by assault the fortifications
at Establecimiento, seizing all the artillery, and causing severe
losses to the enemy. As Y.E. will recollect, our forces had
previously occupied the important position of Tay, cutting off
the enemy’s communication between the river and the interior
of the country. Lopez had ordered a road to be opened in the
Chaco, from Monte Lindo to Timbo, by which he could continue
te supply his troops with provisions. This road was not yet
completed, so that the first remittances of cattle and other pro-
visions had not yet reached Humaitsé. In Humaita, Paso Puce,
and the other positions occupied by the stupified slaves of the
tyrant, was felt the want of cattle and cereals of all kinds. The
war appeared to us to be drawing to a close. In fact, the com-
manding officer of our dungeon ventured to say, in reserve to
one of the prisopers, that in eight days more all would be
decided. The Prussian, Major Von Versem, knew that Lopez
considered himself lost, and had resolved to endecavor to raise
the siege, an. operation, however, in which he had but small
confidence, because, in.the late encounters on the left of his
position, he had lost almost all his cavalry, and ours was
numerous and well mounted. ;

““On the 20th, therefore, we were surprised with the
announcement that Lopez had formed the resolution of passing
to the Chaco, with all his army. 1 did not give much credit to
this news; but after a time I was convinced that Lopez had
escaped, having during the night passed over to the right
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margin of the River Paraguay. Meanwhile, troops and horses:
daily appeared in Humaitd mysteriously, and disappeared
in the same manner; afterwards, we learnt that during the
night they were embarked for the new fort of Timbo.

‘“On the 6th of March we received orders to embark, and on
the afternoon of that day we went on board the Rio Apa, and
proceeded in the direction of Timbo, where we arrived next
day at dawn.

‘‘ Lopez, having received information that our ironclads had
gone to Tayi for fear of being boarded, gained courage and planned.

‘a scheme more eflicacious than breaking through the siege, and

which need not entail the loss of all his war material, &e.
Unfortunately he was able to carry his plan into effect, and our
fleet learned too late that the small Paraguayan steamer which
had escaped on the 19th February, by hiding in small rivers,
sailed with impunity between two positions occupied by the
Imperial fleet conveying troops, artillery of all calibres, horses,
&e. As I said, before I reached Timbo, on the 7th and in the
afternoon of the 8th, although I was extremely debilitated, I
received orders to march with the rest of the prisoners, who
were all in the same circumstances as myself, almost naked and
very ill. In the afternoon of that day we marched nearly two
leagues, by roads covered with marshes, in some of which the
water reached to our middle. Marching through the Chaco, we
reached Monte Lindo, the last Paraguayan post, about the
beginning of April.

‘‘ During this time several of our fellow-sufferers died, among
them Captain ‘Cavalcante de Albugquerque, whose corpse the
prisoners were made to carry. Among the prisoners there was
a deserter who called himself Lieutenant Simplicio Luiz. I
have reason to believe that he was a simple cadet of some Per-
nambuco corps. This party had been appointed as capataz over
the Brazilian prisoners ; he spared no effort by which he could
annoy us, contributing to the death of not a few, advising those
who carried their exhausted companions to drown them in the




streams, and shouting ‘Kill that nigger,’ and flogging us when-
ever, from excessive fatigue, we could not walk. Simplicio
had done great harm to our countrymen in Paso Pucu. Having
learned to speak Guarani he acted as interpreter, and as such, in
order to ingratiate himself with Lopez, he reported all he heard.
This intriguing, infamous, and miserable Brazilian had been
allowed by Lopez to keep his sword, and had taken employment
in his service, receiving a salary the few times that the army
was paid.

‘“From Monte Lindo we went to the river side, in front of
San Fernando, and were taken across to the opposite bank,
whence we marched straight to the camp, where we found that
Lopez had coucentrated all his forces. I remained some days
exposed to the inclemency of the weather, and witnessed the
death of 2nd Lieutenant Campos, who, like the rest, died with-
out any assistance.

““Captain Palacio had been replaced by Major Franco, who
treated me with a little more consideration, and supplied us
with some comforts and better food. My health was, however,
getling worse and worse. I had lost all hopes of living: all
my clothing consisted of an old cotton shirt and poncho of coco
thread, which was so full of lice as to make it a source of
martyrdom rather than shelter.

“In San Fernando I lived with a little more liberty, but
great reserve, until the march for Lomas Valentinas. My
health, which at first had been getting worse, began, after two
months, to improve, and whether, owing to change of air, or
simply to Divine protection, I began to recover, after having
suffered from intermittent fevers, cholerina, and other diseases,
for which water was my only cure.

‘““During mystayin San Fernando I had no news of my fellow-
sufferers, except Major Aranda, Lieutenant Quinteros, both
Argentines ; Major Versen, Prussian, who occupied the same
room with me, besides Major José Maria Murtinez, Argentme,
and Simplicio Luiz, above alluded to.

69 .

“‘On the 27th of August I left San Fernando. The conspiracy
against Lopez favored me greatly. Not having been considered
implicated (I ignored all about it), I was not sent to the dungeon,
as several of my companions were, but allowed to continue in
the guard house. Major Versen, upon whom suspicion bad
fallen, with great injustice, was removed to prison, and I sup-
posed him dead. The march from San Fernando to Lomas was
consequently very easy for me, nithough I had to walk bare
footed day and night, and was obliged sometimes to feed on
raw meat, as there was often barely time to kill. In less than
six days we went over the distance between San Fernando and
Lomas or Pikysyry.

“During the transit 1 had occasion to witness the most afllict-
ing scenes of horror and barbarism. Lopez, learning that our
cavalry tried, by forced marches, to overtake the Paraguayan
armdy on the road, had to hasten his retreat, and as the condition
of the prisoners prevented their keeping up with the main body
of the army, he ordered that all those who lagged behind
from fatigue should be bayonetted, an order that was on
several occasions carried out near me, and I had afterwards
to tread over the corpses of my fellow-sufferers ; at times I
remarked that the order was executed with refined barbarism,
as the tired prisoners were bayonetted and thrown into the
wood only half dead ! I remained in Lomas Valentinas until the
day I was able to escape from the claws of the tyrant, the 27th
of December of last year. Whilst I was there I spent the best
period of my captivity: my health was better, the food had
improved, and I enjoyed a certain amount of freedom.

“On the 23rd of September, the attack at the bridge of
Turubyhy took place, at which Captain Joaquin Gomez Persoa,
and a corporal of the 5th regiment of infantry, whoso name I
forget, fell prisoners Captain Persoa was at once removed to
Lomas, and he will be better able to inform Y.E. what happened
to him till the 4th of October, when he joined me, and Com-
mandant Marco made me responsible for his conduct.
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*‘ On the 15t of October, Lieutenant Amorim Valporto, in the
recounaissance of the lines of Pikysyry, was also made prisoner,
and a day or two afterwards handed over to me, under the
same conditions. '

““ The reconnaissance of Pikysyry, although without immedi-
ate advantage to the Allies, would, in my opinion, bring, as a
consequence, the operation in the Chaco, which gave a result so
glorious to our arms. The emissaries sent by Lopez to-explore
the ground had declared this operation utterly impossible. My
confidence, however, was increased when I learnt that this
arduous task had been entrusted to the brave Genmeral Argollo.

“In the first days of December, I heard that our forces had
crossed the River Paraguay and landed at San Antonio. Onthe
6th, the engagement at Itororo confirmed this news. I was not
deceived by the announcement spread by the Paraguayans :Imt
our forces had been defeated, and the number of wounded
brought back strengthendd my suppositions, these exceeded
3,000, and the hospitals were crowded beyond measure, and my
barometer (the looks of the women) indicated fair weather for
our cause.

““ On the 11th, the battle of Avahy took place. At first I was
greeted with ‘the terrible news—* The black men have been
completely routed ; * but later on I learnt the truth. In an im
provised ball of courtesans a woman told me that the Para-
guayans had lost the action, leaving in our power all their
artillery, that the rout had been complete, and only General
Caballero had escaped, as in Tatayiba. The ball lasted but a
short time, because the General, knowing that both the Para-
guayan men and women had no inclination to dance,ordered the
suspension of festivities.

‘““A panic spread in Lomas. Carts were got ready for
the retreat. My hopes sunk within me, and T at one time
dreaded lest I should have to accompany the savages to the
Cordillera. How often have I asked myself why is the enemy
not pursued vigorously?
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‘“ After the battle of Avahy an incident occurred which I must
not pass in silence. I was informed, if I mistake not, on the
12th of December, that the President of the Republic wanted
to speak with me, and on account of this I received some clothes
(a pair of drawers and a shirt). In fact I was next day taken by
Commandant Marco to the headguarters of the Commander-in-
Chief; but we did not find the President, and Marco informed
me that I should have to go again during the night. Fortu-
nately, or unfortunately, it rained hard during the night, and I
was not again called opon to renew my visit. On communi-
cating to my companions the notice I had received, they
expressed as much surprise as myself. It was indeed an extra-
ordinary occurrence for a prisoner to go te Lopez’ quarters, and
more s0 into his presence. We made all kinds of conjectures,
among others Major Versen said to me—*‘ Lopez wants to escape,
and wishes to send you to the Marquis.” My interview with
Lopez not having taken place a report spread in the camp that
it was with Madame Lynch, and not with Lopez, with whom I
was to have spoken. Be this as it may, this event had perhaps
some important meaning. :

““On the 2ist Lomas was attacked, and I witnessed the
fighting from the centre of the enemy’s army. The attack lasted
till the 27th, when I managed to escape, with all my companions,
eight in number.”




Introdaction, ....

Official Documents of the Paraguayan Tyrant.

Vice-President Sanchez’ Letter to Lopez, céae
Lopez’ Letter to his Mother, veop soce
Luis Bamberger’s Letter to Lopez, .... Rielale

The Spy System,
Model of a List of Prisoners, - S e
Punishments for not Acting as Spy, .... olode
Specimen of Paraguayan Reports, ov v sone
Inquisitorial System, gL
The Form of Lopez’ Trials, el SACe
System of Revenge, ceee cees
The effects of Terror,
Barbarous Order about Desertion, sees o -
Documents explaining the de-Popalation of Paraguay,
Shooting for not Rising Early, seinie o ale
Horrible : Shooting for Talking and Flogging for Listening,
Lopez’ Tablets of Blood, ....
Abstract of Official Documents, vooe oo ue

The Prisens of Paraguay.
Official Declaration of a Brazilian Officer,

-Neq oy O] J¢ Oy 30w g
dn pouany 1nq ‘4.4 potad
Jsuosuad Sevaw o, PADUSNI M
fJunazew sanjvu © 205 wooad |
Fuiwoo ‘nonyme WYY D0
Adw eom 1 yizr 44, poar am
13 peaAjaae puq 10 poyoua
Sy pungg pun ' P 200 a0 “X
ape 1% agdn of.g 4 ous |
rasud w Joniw pho, o-a Cuid
‘Suepuswo) 94,5 nmo sy
oM oM c|l()§0ll W) SpIus l
3xou puwv ‘euyy 30} daanp
-snw ‘3031a Juyy A *¥3av0 |
‘fuedmod ano J.ou Y
#aosq jo Fuqu ¥y !
-juosudde ‘ende ,'\3!“-..\,'.:?',': ’
€ puw ‘pooy ou py BTsH ')‘n'hu ‘
ue UOWoM uns 1Bia |
v Qe Sao 8 St el ol
Ind ues om mu < J'-"Illl"l

“Papngoe ano
‘RAup oap
117% poljuy
praanofl ano
Sjao pairay
1T pow
av ‘juaund
T 0] J0o0gu
oL Mg m
I powgsny

31 Imyg) 104 o%
oq3 !Je1ex sn 9y
wmWag3 jooy 1nq

asduo] ou plonon
‘SN §pavao)] aiw
puu ‘seouw] Jieq
siodooxy uerjizvs
dWaU FUM [IMSIV
PaSDWIXD adom

&da] 4uo LSvp pao
uo 3days am gl PUI Onm
o 01 dn asom of' IV PUv ow

pue'joy Lava sum [O1H "UOPH
8N @A pun a0 » r
: uUnIeIvg 03 W ":lg:;';:ml
eouwNIp eyql ‘pe '“"I'él -'_;,\-
OI0M GA\ ‘HOImumI) o) aan
q3noq 1 yorgs y pue efug
O|ppus puw ajum 4 ‘nopuang
o¥ pinoys om Ju) oM aRoy
pue ‘saeuorpad 191 UYe
A 0 POy asm Lo smno
pneaay ous W vo; ym
ul su Jajawd] ‘fuw W1 wUM
Ixou  fawe poy o) puw §
™M pasojw
Lvapex pawnfear dinge Juga |
oxvm 03 sevion s, Apwoa
l;:["l,):“:ﬂ ‘Bapuad oo wop
PINoMA 9ig .58 3 mou
W aMmevwm Sm pond an'.n suo
oy pn'. ‘soouvse Anol ‘rosl
'lpco(o AJoa TVaN, 4y oy
uredu Gn 40§ Jud IOqmunE
-"’UV. H&0p U, uaeny AN
Ioym “w00ie Leus BWND Iy
‘IqFm awq3l ROl gare
uMIp(Igo Joq puy
onb oq pinos p

yoawur o) |

od wowIn o
.q‘_ o ._‘u a ‘tendsoyy

9AL CAEnosumnue siotod Jnoy wmoay
2avIa 2q3 ojut doped Lnwaes awmyx

lenagg o3 svs om yudpep eqexvedsun

ANO ¢F 'YIQY 91 Jo Jaimiom 9 U0 .«
sammnnoa agl ot lefanyg jo
e 1w Ljgquqoad pmonsom ‘Juos om
It plus 9q a0y ‘Swis 01 ST POSIADE OH|®
Apoang Jofel pus ‘Jaom 03 KIDpJO

| ou puig oM qug) pados o cos Op 03

FWs1apw quq ‘80 9000} 0] SISPI0 O pug
(o) Aurdes ‘Auae o) ol oy Jujod
10U SJOM DM 1 JEN 0] ganl] Sdang Jo
oM amwd saudw oy,  Igdiw esedess

’ v possud om vndny QIFr o4z N0 .

wayds s yor
FINMPIOS Mo B puv ‘poniemas pyy sjuw
“Guyn 0q1 JO 9mog Yois ol sepisoq
fuopnnsy v Lavoaggode nw aeaq peyg
ogs ‘awmy e ‘Jpoiny JofMgyg JO eavo
wpuanaln|ia 41 U NNE 0L Tnoqe 39
zoadory “Louw o) JO goiuww o4y Jayv
puigaq 3o ‘edoowue) e ajdood g
-Jurr £340) sou axam oxem pav ‘giuom
oql jo ysag oy o1 dn Led ano poswo
SO puY OAy  CTONT QT [VLISJNOT JUMA
pun sand oy Jomxw) ‘Joejur eys 10§
pagsavm (ju puv ‘usmom JOo suoljujug
AUIOR ORW pEYy GF] seogNam quig

L ple pun seouw| s Spsoal pewaw

‘wAOf puR towm 000’ g1 UeEgl SH9] 1SquIna
0U PIROD Joaxay s uostaed 9Nl ‘wlano
~ZW ownovas o) papasooxd ueqr oFp
sqiuom 1qFw swy oqy Fodnp ‘sand
pop smos Japnong ‘aonard 16 seoerd
Lixie oug) aow Joused IBYY ‘qigr
el uo wuasiw om dao o}ruq o ‘wux
*NOZY Jo s1g¥en sy) o loum sig qars
Jug Caduoww)) 9n sar j0r pIp "
wnusd aonuayiv A1as oy
pred jowsEse [eopaur o) Juq ‘1o s
O JI9SUIYg QW00 07U PHuod oy f pury
oA ogw wes Jouniyg Ul ‘punox
Iy Joq 01 FIopmI Lfuval 8N Jues
ogqs ‘gondry ewepery Jojy Juq P oanq
nan jEnm oim £ saonER: 3 URETY
w0y 91 puq Ljue oM ! RLI0JWOD Jou
SOLIUSRODOU JoqiFa #u exndoad pnoo
{onom puw ‘suiv puae xasey Jon A
ponunuod oM Lw swnueal “feuour
wodud uy Jreq ‘aeaqe uyp eq o oer juql
‘arojoq e emvs wadvay ano pred siom
AL D29 uovued Junsed ‘lequyy Sun
U0 ‘[erosse 23 1w uemysydagy Iggo
UM NI0m 07 Jow swa T pdnownd) uj,,
189305
o) uragFu euo paguyg oM pue ‘Jnog
1P supmianom ou) giuvolyl pewox o

| 10q ‘3e0ad £10A J0U NUA SOUWMINIP UL

pdnowe) Jo  (WIRSIR OQ)1 0 Wn  £oa
~UoD O] 2:u0 v mew puw (R jJo pume
-a1) Quom ¥ saRjop H 03 vedve fm
uMop j00 sonimul) s ewm Loyd

o — —_—=



http://ajo.il
http://s8.1i
http://lwu2v.lt

THE

SUPPLEMENT TO

;
2

e N

U

AYRES

BRITISH

SUFFERERS IN  PARA

BUENOS A

MBER

N, 180N,

YHRES, WEDNESDAY, SKPT)

———
W BMITIisu
Fr}

ANRNLIVAL

Ll
il 1

OF TN

The Tamguy wrriv
witimo from Asancion
0 Buturday, Yix
t of the rescned

ot By 1M
et churge of L
DMount, who tw Uty

apte

ACOOURT CAFrTIYY

4 Cenek

e e i
of thn ¢
Tasuguy Al the cononsiamncy,
Munosl Delfing. Some of Lhe w
wora In & statn of Wroat
et Lient. Niouns sl » supply
stomtives el gthehing
cines proper for the ocvasion | the
ohildren, espovialiy, woe in « Yory fee
duood conditkn amd w st of + will
be sent to tee Hoatah o , wh
® Lall ks bosn pregared for (helr Tes
onption, an it will be seoresuary to pal
them Wnder realment hat some Lime
they ean ho sont note (o Eag
Inod. In bs gratifping W Jestu  (hal
Coent 4 B dinpl vy kindones
W the uufortunste paode.  They wae
lving st Cenoups 0r tan lasl »ig
wonthe, sallsring teerible pr
until Lopes sbanduped Ape
fied to tha Bwrrms do Usaguast
of the olbdrem Lol te walh seven wailon
barefont, Gl they sowabud the s
willan Mnes. 11 s, vor, I .
o suppone thst Logpes Sad uny o thonn

o hanstion,
wl ron

[

-

The foliwwing » f the Britial
snljeuts bromght e from  Ae sont of
war, taken Bousr Vilenssels aid Cas
ol —

Peegy Duseall, sioll wy
Ayvee i Torngyy

ey Vilpy, oo
in

e L T
r
Mhashies Tens, mmin g sginee, smat 10 Dassen
Avimn i Tarngrny
Drtggn MWikem, segivner. sl be Basos Ajpren

a T 4
'ﬁ'p; oy, g, wat e B Ay -

2
"'m Mbett, om
Taragur,
W oltham Sk Vel
‘.

ot b8 Nuetice Ayoee

o, vt 10 B Apvee

s
Neal enrvant, smt b Posms Agme =

Pasthby | b -
Torngrir

Wikl B

Agwvw i Tamgvy
Chan,  Adss,

o1 e Busaoe

wnghuser, watt 0 Nusnss

. wnlih, st e Bassss Apeen
o Toraguy
Williem Bden, Sveman of Sew mill, st
Damos Aywe 10 Targery
JT-O.A Moyian, s

Bouk b Banans 5o

1) sene e

2, Mayhe, e gin oo vl ah Aweian
Charies Oenne, wgu-e wat bo D Aprme

ev Haehor. ovat he Maswme

——— o
Aprws s Taimeny
e Losmls
Ayves s Turg iy
Jorten Moarfin orrs r p
v ag e

e -l et A

U S ——

L

- - -
i -

Wiklem Yowion wam
Ayres b Tntager
Mo Mllashets &

. "
v Mhiand
. .-

whls Wepnr
»

Wi M ower
Jhn My

o

 Torlor
ey Ay

Awan
e

.n

Jebw o ¥ sl %, et

L

“onmas

Arve
[T

- h

welimn Blapuibon, girl, sl T, seui s e
Tetoguy
wthir, girl, nged &, send o Bassss |
s sapor
reme g~ agel ¥ smut 2 Nuence
Versper
wmes, gl sged 4, st b Dusnse
tage s |
vene, gith, aged 13, sed = llu-l-!

et
Tapien, Sep, aged 8, remained s
Ler mpwd A remamed ot Aaer

o, by, aged |, sesmained o5 Asen
"

o ®
M e
» Taraguy

3 gl wpnd €, wt ta Bhuense |

Pawion, ghol, spnd 11, et b
Tavragwr
Sy

aged 8, wenk tn Tiswse |

wiom, Jay, aged 5, sond b Busse |
“gwy
Tt semeined o4 Cuncupl, jaable b
N FYawxem,
Commasers of M M8, Craelor

O the arrival of she stoamer Yoo
terdny, Lisatesant Disant at onoe pro
el 1o the Biriush Uonsalate. and
Mr. Paciah arranged that the safforors
{abnnlid Lo reonived in the sobouleroom |
Luttnohed 1o the Bugliah Ohaesh. AS
e pume time, & asum itton of '-un--‘
Do, sompossd of the Jov, Mr Pnﬂ‘.l
[ Mo Clua. Jacknon, and aome aothers,
sided by wome ghish ladies, were in
attendanee 10 diaribete clothing nod
look afier the ofher proasing reguin.
wetta of the voeamion De. Aluton
wie alaw promeut, but IS seema therw In
e tutiee Dir smeie t other thuw
Lo ar hewe eiibdesn, whao will, dovit.
lons, momn fossd alisr proper Cresde

et
| Tha soudition asd sppesmsos »l‘
|t suflervrs bn woch wa b0 anlint the
| warmant mywpathy, sud we s ghad
to b able to state that she Oonsal baas |
Iralasd & handatme subscoriptios for |
Liheur sssistamoe, Sowe of he aen
{have alrwady begua to mgein srenglh
[ott papeiilly, during the lnst tes daye,
that oos manld sonron bhetiesn they had
gKone thevagh sooh hasdabipe fw &
peciod wf lone ywars mr meore,  Othess,
however. arm still guite emactaied and
|aguard laoking, thelr halr premes
[tarly grey, their Agares wasted, thelr
Ihands buny, thelr syes suckes, and
demps Purrows soross thels Serebead :
thees, Yon, will, i & faw duys, redover
wash of thelr wosted strength sud
vigor, wa soon aa thay o god Vs
nevwanary rwposs, The women are la
Vi ious  oconditians, some caresworn
wnel dujecred, uthers silil gay wid chisar
ol wiader al) thelr sorrowe:r sotme of
wem wre widows of Roglishmen who
Wil b thae war, and many bave rossded
soveral years in Pacsguny. Thairtales
(ol waffening and advesti o of e

!

|a

et (riiling  kind, sod » shall
vudomrar tn pablish from beir own |
Vg a iy of intaresting nacretives |

witiol will eabist ustverssl syspasicy | to gn bock &
o | WO 00 pasaine

| Bame of thy sallcrers hre not 0 des.
|utathin o fur Lostanve, Masra. Burrell
sod Valpy, civil snd mils
e,
vons rurling the ralivay from
so Ville Baw ‘Therv
w dhoron Magtishmen who
autanly socompany Lopas asd bis
forues i A retawat 30 the Inlecier |
ey mem I Bhwpar, who ranks o &
Usinanl ; Capt. Thomipare, whe (llee
all e guns for Lopes ;. Mr, Nesbish,
ehiief of Law wrsoanl ;. Me. Hooter, Mr.
Ty o, Jumiur, amd De, Slewart's sete
vauk
Lywrzune spoaks 0 the kighast man-
et of the Rindanes of De. feimnee, wne
savil momh of e poov peopis from
WA VAL
Hamss of the refagese wom of thoan
Wk shelior lan your (o Mr, Wash
o Liwew
WL sent inland.  Mesay of them have
oyl e Ay el some years past
and had e suiwint on their own pee
somreos.  Thank Gud, they have surs
viewd moch Jramdfal bardlakl andd
thalr ovantrywmes »ill une -y
werows ot ot b Leely bola!f !
T mnoi r.u— tannos be given o
and Lieot Moasut fer
SiTangemente,
L Aneel Vacieh, e, Mr
Vapd, Mr. Ouaries Jackeen, &a Wa
[have sien e meniion that che most
sotive imvmrent han hoan taken try the
an, W tionery, (LM, Misigter; and
e patdie w Tret ammttwd Ll Yue

remained |
e Amencan Bag, |

. MILNA'S NAMMATIVE

ard the
103
Wriew
rlon
an
-

hililresn on the e
Alle bie v ramiation
s anel Lie elllelre
e LI I B Mr N
of the hardest vanre of
oW -
both limeol! wod his vhiblien Le
w very shkly eondivian
Mowe of s hamine Inton

]n.

2udd ongtnees on I tre

"™

i} the pors of § “

wilar botng v ¢

il the eNlel vogine
ated 1Tugh Baty

-t

Maszzini,
Lrimtem
whoot 7
10k of Aprt
soutabtment, =iz N
vame down the river, enrrying lsrgw |
numbers of mon, with the Parsguayan | nod chiidron wifl p
ng Ayins. Thay passst us sud wone | The cagivesr Milos
bedow the poiat . ok pad [Py frodn the Ar
bore down on rey ranaimvg |
nte our paddiebos, sl the Pare
gunyans boarding we L ki
e, Bome OO of enr o moetly |
nalives, jampml ovectmand o werm
all drusied or shot in the water, e
oopt pos W tew whe snccooded | afels  renslied
swimmmiag sshore.  The svamy oo probably arersards o
taking possession of aur ahlp, cked | INteriar,
ap the enginesrs in their enbine, asd Yor the oneveatepor of thone fortiee
Aafler »ahart Gme we wern saomuotied | Whe way Be unalde o hand 1a el
te the pressuce of the vaptain of th hngriptitma b thie eviisl priwa) we
Iguray, wha asked My Hain oF bo'shall be ghal o forwund wuy snas
would ke charge of the stenmor for trwated to as
Lopes, to whioh be refused.  The onie _ - |
Sed e and 1 cunsented, ME. DN NTAYEMERYS
whersapon Mz Din wes cwrrind & Mr, Willkass Bden, a nstive r
prisnner be Paso in Putria smd theuen oo ba, Haommnrw omae by
snnt overiand o Ville Pranes, | afrer- | 0 Tasdon, sosl st woe
wards jearned that ke disl betie o Rossia s frewsn of &
roustiing that town, bat the wmanner of | sales foelbiswn
Lia demihs be mot Epawn | protmbly t] "1 wateoguasl by N
wan from ban ip. slithaggh e » INGE, Tar o tecim o 4
in guod heslih previcusly, sl sboat sharge of o saw il foe e o e
40 yours of wiee 1 was smpiored far [t io Pargosy I owrrivd I Asan
g I e 25 de Mage, sarrriog [ o0on in July, wong with 1woe  womed
troope snd mmman (ties from Avaneion | oomwing ot Lo thew hnsbansda, sndd an
wayts, antil they sranafurred | ngineer wamed Forrestor; tho lust
e o the 1o Bianen, shather stiainer | WOut home souts after. | wan jot o
employsd lD (e ssame way, il nrge of the ssw . mull, vext the Arse
* Ia May 1500 they sent me o the | hal, with nios native serkinen 'nin
srveusl st Asaueton, whnre Mo Wiite | Wos 0 the time of Lopes L, whie was
Nomd Al ks wtufl werw oustin » goond ruler, troates] us w ol
won, &, fw b army. Tewn O T T T T
tnter ¥r, Whitohewd ooumin |wuges regularty, vie, 0%
oo, avd the oommand foll e Hv,l"n— bt An gold otbery
Girane, wha wee dind, (o Beptember of | Sapec dediarm, eqna all o
the same yoar, Prom this Shwe, Me ' £13 serling moothiy, My saw m
Neabitt, formerty ehist engivens of u sepplisd timbee for alipe oo
stramer, beewasn boad man, onts | POremes
lng al) thrmagh (he sest of the war | WY peaison e seine wnder
L0 worl (he sresnal 4t Asancion, being Bl s00, Lhe jrwsect rules.
wided by some twenty Iingiish meatn ] ~leamndindaly aflor than treakd g awt
wios, making sannen and turpeloos ((6f e war Jy sostiact ®ae ot s vl
thees lant wurs ander Ve sopery iwion (anld 1 offered o mais » now oot raor
of Mr. Ball aftwrwards did ot [ Tor 2 yoars longes I they guve we an
ehwlers ot Hamnite advanee of wages, Tothin l enocivmi |
“ Lo Pobraaty 1504, after the Besal- (00 roply, and they stlll kept o ™
ten Bret had forved the passage of | wark an Dofers  Abedt The wt |
Bamaits. we thoaght (hore wes /1967, o ooutesat having sapiosd 24
uhnnos of our delivery, and ook refuge | Foars providas, ther sabod me s vigw
with Me Waashtmirn ot the Assericnt |8 rw onsbenet fur 13 monthe, wiioh |
Logstian in Aswwmon.  When (hie|rofusmd, stating that mg wils  wus (0
eyl wna taken fram ww, My, Nowion [very delionts healih, and [ desesdod
nod [ wors sont 1o Ban Loconsn, near [s passage Boms o Kagland ne iu mo !
loque, sad therw kapt (n the atouks (swiirsel They kopt o ol work Jor |
fr swv oty one day sth | sonsented |Bve waathh looger, but when the |
il wotk i the srsesal at| Brastiue flest forowl the i gn of
ancos, Here | remslosd 11l the | Homais, ta Pebruary 1804, towk
eod of the year, when the batils of fuge sleng with Me. Watn, My
e Valoutinns ohiiged Lapes to Newtow, Mr, Miles, wnd the viduss
) IMes Cutler andl Mrs. Thomus o0 e |
and Siates Legstion, whey e
nelghtorimg v ituge of Qasenpe, | Minarer, Mr Washisrs, geym vs (o |
= Wa meadn 00 lrass snvaons while lodgiog and alluwed bis snrvaot 1o go |
Lopes beld bt caop 8 Asturen, bis | bo tmarked forus ovvry duy, Hem w :
alading 30 swelem-pouuders and 10 romatsed S5 soothe, durieg whieh
eoms . Ihe rifllug duane by | dme, Ahe Gorarmment ssnt o9 1 ask |
Thempeon, wha s ot prosent me 00 1 woudd gu 0 the lsur 3o
with Lapes. The g wore madde of  work, wioek T aviused
vk balle wimad wp with the Tlegal | 15 wes wb this tima et Lopes |
Hen rannanelmlis wiiol we pleked op oharged My, Wasbitazrn sod Wosses, |
ment e Hioes, Blise wod Moestersmann with the prw
O the socashom of TLM.S. Dese | tambod sovspitaey to kil bin, whwb 1 |
eon wrriving A% [Hamatin o coonive [lelleve Lol oo foandativn Mever
the Eagilah cuptiven, [ sabicsted pore My wifs strended Mex. Wonbbarsn dos
mienien fram Gan Har los 2o leave, bl | g hor confinrisent, and aever hoand
he reimend me pecemptanily L have ol aaything of ‘he St Wl was
nirt Deard for weorw thaun o yons ol ¢ N T T
tats Massind wnil the wther alwna abat 48 e of
of 2y skip shesdly waam, and il e
ol al maman plane fus ' okls alwrard Slasmers sad
Mre Neawina gives the i nad
| thotlars of the caseille mame “ On July 1200 ww worn ardernd ot |
e IAOA, woder i T oremets [ of the Awertenn Legation, aud senot s |
e wapioedd junt aftee the | San Lotenso, whieh 0 n st ddin. |
L R RN —“ Uhres  Laguss, O LT
ndey mowr [wion, T Weest herw 15 duys o >
the arsenal of Anancioo, » hars bo cust | corrudor, and then blved o ranel o it |
cutmrw sud wilire i, Ble wan IS 12 feet iy 15, whers 15 of sa Sasbud |
wenthn ot Jhieny, where he ot the | Ing womenl sed ohildson, fasad she! |
great gus Cebnila and 70 smalior, furlter, A Tew days litor tho pallon setond
whith e semt Lopes o B of SL000, | ma alang with Xowtan and Mips, jout
et comid vot ged pakd, et e nl) Uhree ol i in the stov s Wates
with Mr. Wll:'l.-'- m ¥ was takan Wb midnight, e elahe of
was pad in the stooks fue T8 days, U our el arvrral, snd Sl awuy w i
e reenmad work. At lamt e retioed | s hoaal 1 sppessrn e
some wmonths siooe W Tobabty, aud|ihe fodowing ot
thate bagan &0 01 & pateh of gromnd Infaton My Walls »

I tes
vy mw |

Tawe

.,
An vegnrds hin o
=ham ke toparts

SHTE |
1

iene
wil)
—y"
—indgs

"

e ‘
|

-
o

bt
abeiad
"

A

we

saftorars will by well stisuded o,

l

cont iviag to fead himesil amd Mis Hi~longaged 1o Lo atmariod 1o Ms Mets |

TANDA
GUAY.

[ durs withont meat, shd the senre

| e

| il slowitar i w Cgalpen®
SR

| TS,

D) Tt
J‘.

a

= e ——
"ho wus

Ml

n widow
Mas, W
frismrdi™s b

tiw
U
even tme to
wxt day she
to open her
snme vog aod
Ihin wan 1he villenos fur
vl tuken up.  During
slockn our faeiliee Bad
o Dol wn wan  relessed an the
funrtin day, boosune  they found T had
ool the bow,  Mes Watis was
lodged in a room next the
wit allgwed to go te the pless
oY inionae.
*A wur fewt srvival ia San Lommass
W onlers met Lo suter wuy naiive
nier 10 Jeave the vilk
Wi we sl & letior 1o snybody.
Jear that i eoflen
dadbara for & dinner for two
wometimes wo  ware thires
of
wan soch that we -
ool mandioos 4
i n dolinr for 3 sthekh
wmalen,  Wa Lal ol seen e o
wagnr for yonrs, asd ol sooh this
aro ont of the guestion,  Tuthis mane
r oWy et most of the mausy we
warwal, the bard sarned Tralls of
sl yemes' Lalvor
COn Do Stk we wete ordeteld wut
of Bag Lorenzo st & mnmest's hotice,
wer destinntion Lelug Yinbabuy about
wromibes indnnad, by ond the OurdiDeen
sid Lakn « pmowray. W e
daysam the Josrany ¢ the Bt part we
wull wfoot 1o Lugos, uhont siz miles,
thee iy ¢ Jlwny to Tacunardl, sl here
v had to bals tenr dagyws In Lhe rain
wnd st welting for enrts, U e shin
prevled ol may wile's faco wnd the blsod
camn oo wer Hpeo M. Ontler ot
Mos. Thr wors with s, andd thely
B LT
S T
lave. ~
vguin got wrder
nad  pashesl  our
Awampy
Misher,

hin
fon
tdl's hos
Y, ui
ey
ST tEme im th

‘ .4
[eTeone

every thi
lotiar bt
Mot Ligg,

winrvh wiiok 1 Led with mea The
wivows Untier sod Thomas ware ase
enmped oenr my family

AL b we got earts,

wllvewn w

1 wigh! toresh
lwdote vraehing Atlre, where | stapped
fane dayw to rest.  Haviog Mred s
Blhrr wart mid ot & horss fur my.
wolf, | et st for Pleibeboy, 30 milos
Tarihet | we e m,-rz n v
day il wrrived st wor
whwint tie wud of Dovsossber, 1008
CThe wxponses of wy removsl from
Han Lownen ts ﬂﬂh'w’m‘ 1o
Tty U dedlaes, Pl -
village, the snlinary popai
aboat S0 onin, b T
tueded with mors (bl ton
wismen Aol olibires, mosd
Iiving amdlor bidee nad the b
roen. 1 eonhl uet slunis -

il

H

mierlves, wha trosted
Kindiy, 1n retaem B oy wilw's
bngs § et brought o geod steck
tuia, and 18 sarved e eaeh
Lhan ey o ba fact, | Usrcerod
than C100 werth from tee o
Wi, manlinee, &

YAy wile wus very UL the
hov s huving opened in three

o waa caneed by oy wailing e
the water, sl thes W‘l—‘:
wand AL the saine s

laid wp Tor w month with
wgne, wnd fuod of every Lind
woarew Lhat two wid men dind
el bt b e, nlBow Lty
Dwnin bt putm b T saw foar
wne Jdav

having died of

it i

1

S

grewt hardabin,

deart May Madame Lynak
bee howss of Pliribehy sand sy
#ol e sk her Far sven
Wie ruosdvesd wmy wile wilh greas

Hiving her a0 e

wrgne, wad segraiting (et ahe
Rwvwen our saffwings
wad Vv got an work ageis,
duy prwvaillod on Lepes S

i

£
jEfiLs

Voo Trt

ued



http://prn
http://it
http://lujhe.it

SUPPFLEMENT TO THEE BUENOS AYRES STANDARD

o wiLh | whe ) e ey ‘ vt o sy At erty
. & of slod J o : gROn. wikioh he aald would
siand ol M) wnd 3 ] - Mew. Tay sl her ob
v i he3tys - ‘. J Ny 18 holes, " UL i dvieck thas migh
§ " wele ’ ’ . Mho (W ATU afior
had ' A Mer
o again,

o enr . ey

Y Taans 1o norih (ie

gt wf Curambg 0 y ' m g . { UL
with tw »ak atation tum FO¥ideism ¢ . mE Ahe vk

' ! mr
v anld ¥ would wend an
o marotog. e added
i Lorses e make
Paragwn milway

. ek * the ] 5 \ e | " * o

ot "'I Jows were detaihed “u b . AT *rine . =1 mrly  next

il | gt sl i 2 Bt ; i bt ! 1 war .- 1] ; : whe __ aated

e Yraiug he . INOA, 1 wos owie o | M . o ‘ o . ; Loalas -

! , e ¢ . trmate prisners, and

@ in U Amociean | U dal lahen ving medg R d ) deniad as borsws, ssying wa sheald zo

ey A k- BUSRIMINS ol e e vt 804 By oot . OFUA, | imot. 1 i aubd sy wale and saddle

. wa ' ' et | & " / RANMES, . ’ i » wnTe v, with wideh | wought

Wt evnry il ) velubodl yoterday by Ay - el e | thw antive e arme bl y— - wnte

“Lapes did ol F 73 pooes | Bemaita aod Curapaity 1 . ot | o rwe il ”_' y 1)
w/th Wis wowy were driven ] 1 et ol wind saltjpwice a " diststion
ren. e beoke op Mie wrseanl na LOtPans + e A $ W » Vatious pat .

10k, ahar onsd misgw sget $ ' "o " wihe ' Y which e |
limg ' A ohae e legth
etttk

Yeruiaeut ynlloas
have dled bt fos ¥

wry hot smd
padl wo were Gp Vo oux

| Rt B WA
B s ug the
14s o provevsled
ourya, the gartisss ey
miimbant Joms than 0 00 - MYy o s : ! _ : ) ' N1 1
arwed  mastly with i . . i h st l fal ™ Vo whe
winting "'l Han
fins lﬂhr.h:((l e ] > puinet ton day Liek | wooordingly took by sesdad bim o8 with their
et O dlous womon, asid all man i ratn mned sum, sbal Paraguarl, sud theee eon. | . g 4o -
for e lntacior, takiug the gune s . : . A1l we anctinedd el BOFIG WAGZODS (Wi warn sl | Sy ':.. ‘---l‘ lamgnags h,vu:. na
war mutarisl with them. We Ll i arney . be swRImp: we w ont the roail, and o0 iy aryival ut ":"' ,""'l WY WS Sy .'"‘. ""."
Vetvod our pay wp te the Bt of the | b oiied at the i W tho savuntniue fisr ol she pleoe gave 'n' .""h M“n oSS, ""'l s ’.-.
i, ADd there worn now Oy Bog | gyvn dayw, o010 exposed T athar, | Dol mndde s Wil eiecmers off, w n; .:‘ ‘r-t gave Mh” ol o -
oft tbiind r o oiibien L v ing all Clos mhin powled | (AR00 acreme L Yiver e B _"'l ""I" o bt thist
the | onded &t Carnpa.ty petes digging rocae el paived us ssceadmgly.
" [ o1 mye, and wa remained ot San Juas O reaching PParsguari wo wete .
avee opes truoks, wloeng with &

r ol Suptembwr | w0
1 wewh asly e Uris Oliaog with
» Intigus ¢ Provm e vemanl, nad
somme  Parsgn that worr

Heab poopie  at Cusonpi,
after the march of the ey, Lopes [ o e arms, baak, sod Guw by
Smit .bugls TO miek o the village andy sourohing san, for it was in the depth | ing same 35 stepe
care of Myjor | o i Tomlown, wi oy pwer. It (e savily avery | oA, whern the Pamg Ove woeks.  Fla wos agmain ordered o 2 7o
had Yeon ne apothenney Ut Avanchon & | niglt, st o S 0o Sod Mt cue h : move, this time o Vilensusts, whery ”'u" @ ‘vl ,\‘:‘ﬂny:u v{n»-.v‘um l‘ll‘
besides the sivk sowe of 1) starel, . Mes. Thamas wes sl of aur | ! ! s B0 mew aaiphdf wors sdioaaes bad  Just - e Avacadoen ."" + ORG &
antn hod romained. aod u few soldiors | par e with ber A ubiibren et momidindnl.  Wa mored the tug, BEmsne grocer in Ferapnarl, appareat-
Jont wa apien. - A8 d0on a8 W i vl (00t | wan | e i waggwan, nid sestled At Viclwo. | 17 ® German, sent e i bag of bisduiia
“ O S 1500 August we psnsd & ~ ot h stanin, whers wo remuinel toe years, | 20 distribale among our company.
wiemploss might,  Fho apbes osms Lwn . D R : e At e o T vy peienss fevn fty. Durimg | Th tratn broka down that uight, eans-
O Lo Lities (0 wek wo wers not . - . ':“'" e ol e [t B0st year tNIRET wore Tessonsbily | INE N leop ot (he Hlun, and nest
g W joim the wrmy, saying they - . O 1 conid e 9 wiviks | oa A fauk «f maftn eosthig abuoui ay we :ryh wl  Asunciot, where we
ad Bn erders to facoe bt advising Ak Avmgahand i 7 Fonsld, 1 was pot e Witk w | $40 ° e 4 yoar oalla went up | ¥ Al Ted
w0 dde i we pe el Ehat we had 5 Ay ¥ srnondo” anil we .y 34 B hottle of wenl oot @10 | Phe geve Mar
orders to move, sod Major rod s . o | L ot which we tvsahed aiter sundwws e Guswrnmeut gave s tations of | port.  We
Sleo sdvined =e to stay, for, he seivd i | " 8 O the rond, and o8 bnat | 7Tl Jedged o the  nieh ot mad wanine, ottt secand year | TAYN
fonr Inty hod Cumvupt i Deccmbar DNt | o0l tvnm with -re we il ther mibte nor salt. ‘Thern | TAXIOr
e VR TAEES IR ANSRES Sevie Ry nTe me b eow's “ A wurn whout 10 natives in the \'lhu-!"““ bofore. ' On the 1Tk T wet =y
* Om. the morning of (i ADID, toway | 00 Shad & smoolh, paying Oemine |3 gy marning & Futagunrs unin We, wuler 1oe dirertion of | MRater o) the railw b,
unapenkabin dulight, »o ssw Wie B rodprt who spokn wme Nag Mr, Twits amd Lin aesistant Mre. Mar. | '® from Caanapé with
Cunres - for & The ol wan sonifMrom Use | e Inttar was tabken sway
-4 lvl“ Me, Toite's bag, Dut tursed op

allilan cavairy galiop i6te the villugs o N
el v Ne 3 1IN0, that Py, 2 cood el whont | wesks 10 tervine thed eu tle beoks “’!."| [ o g e P
Drualliane

frean dans poiata slmnltanecssly, We .
- od -u'h:-u LN S IETTR S R ;' " 2 :‘-‘- :.: l‘l'nmnu':t"l-.h- 2 ":' | thho Mrwniie, what was wmy bdew hnpl-...” ey waggin that the
Srneped thalt haods, wherepon they 3 N 4 | mboat B Ohmiews of e wut. | go-| O the Lith of Aagust my master
snid— Phowe praple et e Prowh | O "‘,h'_'.'. :_"‘m.:':.::;":":: = “""‘; plied that | wes & poot sasdo .. was mummined o l‘-:‘;p‘. I{N’ 1 was | *staed. "-w arekall "'“"“ with
or Englinh,* musd tbey tswatod wa kinndly, | 0 o e e 1n | M0, Stl sl war  nuthing, mdes |0 denad thad he might have folles tute * wers twn days ahaasd
nlling B to go ek r Musnes and 51 e Sebet -: ;' : "'-' ® [ (s that (b Dnestiine werw Seny | diagrane, whiok sould asaes bim to e | 1T S Crucker, where wars traated
that & guard wonld be givom to peater |0 S0 ae l'm d him § sthit :“:' with saldisen mad ohps e varrytag | shot, Bke so many wibees, Tle was, with extraonlinecy kladnese by Capt.
un Aboat 10 saa, Count "l wreieed | IR S A att B | U the wir, Kl nwkod i 0 1 wap | Dewaver, in gl spiriie, awil chem fully | Feekes and everyune on boand,
with b brillinnt atalf, wnd e fntn the | 0, LT '_‘u'l’h . . WD, | s, to whioh | amnwered in e | laibe unn ook abar averyihiog as tenal, | ¥® were zaashipped 10 the Termguy
Plasa: baving soat fir an b sd lrowees) | 50 550 Rt &0 _."_'q‘“" S WS pepative, Dot thes [ cwnbt | Wi | et expectod b0 patiarn n & auuple i | or Busecs Ayres. T 0280 in
sl Baghish, sskiog our asmes and | 100 er Pt T onw b | room or Tiwk afiar fueeo vo |duye ) Bot be wiae destived wever o | Paragusran money, Lot the .
whist hevamn of Lopeat By this RENIN 1 DAY & - il ,". h--ll gl 1S dny Madame Lynoh wus ving 'tetare.  He rode off on his mstie, 8t~ changers will give me notbing for
time tho Brsailiaas—orse, faof, msd | oy " S0 ~--lo.-. % " e “‘:' D8 | ot i her aacriage, and seeing oo e | tendel By & trosty native.  That aighs | 1 80 Bot mean e retars to o
sriltiesys—bud oovupied Ui Jdasn, b O TR ST RICORE U0 renath WICh | off my kit 4o malute ber she i gl we baand (e lcacilians bad taken (e | Dot 16 siay s Shis ey, i1 can peo-
the number ol 10,000 or ware.  Aw | o0 Lieinit o it - ':’, s me e 07 1o apeak W0 e, Villagr ot Lapueal, and { ppokod up my | sare employmeat
effowe 11 the Primoes b down our ,_,,' L " going ww to Fvk | Good wyening, yove lady ) mstar s oouta, bp set WAKE soreiog
| L4 * Tuaw prond to wow sour bady [ 0 Ccucrwia ' foe Pirslobuy aud LATHEST FROM PARAGUAY.

wawnon il dipreted] o be rendy o waial
start ment dhay st wnnviee.  Oneof onr | The Bagieh workmen got 5 booses | akip, for T aften Seard tell 0f yoo te. | CGnacs b —
BABYr, Bewevor, wis usubin (o uove 0 Lopes for their secommadation | furm. 1 hagpe on sre well ™ Burly on tha 1215 wo saw Beasilinn a7

16 wae Mra Foteilin, whe Gad just boen 40l S esciand us from sach pain. “F omm quita well, thouk yon ™ she  sevaley (o detached partios, nombers Asuncion, Anguat 37, 1088,
voafised ; bot bushand, wiom abe had | [0 cxpossre, scting askde sume rooms | rapliod ; = sl what pacs of the word | 10g i il aliat 150 men : (here ware Mrs. Btawnrt bn ab Mrayn , sha was
marviedl in Bagland, was amen g Qisee | w.dwwe and 0 ehildren, and | 4o you oome from ™ | Paenguayan minses, wha Bed lnvoes | oLa cd tlies s will not be abie to
whe bad mamehed with the ey, Y oharing oith ts Whalr sonn | ol ogm s rambiing Brielimen, sy | 008 s fow pintils sad ritles.  They

'_r.plo 'll-'t-.a. e rl-l.;. wet, young | ! Poeype: . 'll ll‘ njr-m-l;‘h ‘!: ol the | ady™ — aod Uees | teld bor my Latess | Srged .\l.u-m'l W blow up the worka | v

Ayloe, and olbemns, Lad » boen | VAU OF Shelh Sindnens, Tor they son- | advsntooes. bt ho snnl bo woald & A wtand- wrtable Mogliah
LECTCS Wt sappart ue U Apedl Tee " Well, I wndvestand o feenldend | Img ne lang A pullﬂ? They u.a-'l...‘:"mr:'::h..}..mr'.w,:

O thn 1008 Angnst we et oaf wt Phin last date 1 vhunoed e msot Aving M wenid wil (e gliatimen | took threw largw tubes mad wweets bl ; oot sducaied in Lendas,
daylroak from Ousenpd 1o ke Bhiwwer, wha hoids & Qolousts | yud prinoners 1 “lerw puu Ao an Qualiee guns G0 frant of the | ihae day, perreotly destitote ; she has
Jonruay of 18 miles wver nok sl hew meoompanied 14 vt el ol L L (e o Dvlig worka, afior whick they scampared off | L4 0" ks rovidentinl ensepe from
o the Measitinn  homibge it wl) Chrcagh the war, and be still | gu you chibase | 0y sl (40 AR wonde T stirted with The | oooniian. A e doa bhes bLess
g u. AL was w long and petind Jou B Al L e apoka Lo me very SHME | e sergemnt of the groaed Gy rewmis | arreta® drawn by & anen and got S0 D o o ll:-"ﬂ“ Tor the
afoot, e sun wus bot, und we wers bowk down var names and thioee of | donan, § will civn B whatever provi. | Seeds Wwwatils the of the rives | ':., woman, | shink abast ©7
fasting: Ihe wone | elebbnds o bu ur nhillers, wrdd lodaid Lopes ."‘!n A JOT WY Terjuiee neooujusaied by Mr. Sarashal) and Men | ¥ Captaie T."‘.F.“‘ whe wae s som-
10 wuls an wall me the meo, ' Lo tvgubarty sup- o f “ehenk yenr Wl ehipeet  huve  Taylar I hor 3 oldeen, twe of| ol of Lopes' bagEege guand, wes
ing Wb the hope W sonu Pl with » whith we aeowrd = pungh to sat, nil 8 well et | Wit walesd wit) e bewbde A wage | o taken by the Allies ut’m
Nty anall hare snpporisd the pumag LY Dl wn sl e gkt o Lapes 00 ) Sie then bt 1en  goisl wenming, | @, Mr witonte consiuted of | oo g ;...’ AN bis wen were sus to
Bl feanive # s Ren bwied v Amgast Tirhe 1 Tecael B menibon | und sext diy sent s n o pasibin, 2 | A0 hard dollure snd  some Ml!m“.‘ Brmenil Uisd (o enrnpe (e
e wu tmtledd plong that we pimove That sbile wo wero fn Canenpd | shires, aml o s of digumm, surth aine | S, fewnliney, drmesing caan, books, | sl S o e 1 soaing starvation slae
Fven a0 Wy poas wiin wae ) Lok 10 Madasie Fooeh's nars, wid | gutipr athout £10 storting  Some this | Sed & gasntity of valisahle stothing | g Wit 10 Ve fmom he guve hisaslf up,
down from axlianetion ssvorn) tiases, | OHe Ut Be Bl e e oA 00 | weeks leler we were pak maed 408 ailewed M Taglor e pat bar twe | O wew & prinener of war st Piage.
bat | chewewd her o : sigar ont of the litthe stock sbe bad 4 st b Asumodon ¢ theie | WELEs aleo Ts (e tonrrwin Mr. La M, wrrived -'-':,‘
thivough the weler woad | bor pocwill ! 100 b &l), reE g masn The Dinstlan luntweson rame down Pireyw laet l;cn.odnv wveal
saias a4 oo, BL wos st whie Mes. Wiates list & o8N no the 150k | Diruaitiamn, Dutehnson, ol Caprasy | SE0g, ol afior Hie sceond 808 § pit | wost o o otate, n
wa  setabed Piare, ox ol | J i, ke Ay befoce we laft Cane| Mansiol wnd swme Eugibsh Govasen of | i my hand 00 stgual U i 5000 1 | 10 cee tuat stage of siacvation,
hacngrys  wiwl  soou - h 1 ot dhos tor st It died of ety y . Mago winamer,  Wa sesy wll | Hiny aifomt us ansd (s waggen, pertvatly destitute, Tle wan Tmme-
wvery hinwlnows frm irsd Dnaslenndl wan Jleite Ak Diherty oxeepd Maisbnd wod the | Spon T ostuted that e Dagpange bee gy st o bourd  the Urselker,
oeeni they gave we r « e d L ey e 5o, who werw Pk we Priaemeie | g d by siesier  They  Gireoted | e the cnre of the G0oter bus the
yrelding wa alow theis RUEN # Fiy " ool awelling im ten tharmat | Iw ool Babiind the Oathedrat e o peoresdd b e Capilie, shent [ e felilnete uaee wan hopaluss, snd,
the might, uend wovt duy wo fosnd w ' . Al IWEE, baving bonm | 1 fivemd smyanlt Musmays sad lmost | #) bumies off, sl peadided owe ssties | W08 UL SO R o
o) v om awtirdidy b be tts 0 D SR, whos wiso ied] | waked (5 the stematn 0f A stbiision, bor | With Aielr Tanons s Mre Taglor and | Dirod yenteniay moming .

s the 13 v all crmveymt . Plien mtow okl tafer ut ' Shay had stolen my poscho sboned 1he | ehildren remained witd the vagew, | ’ v M X
by swdl A enmetan e it g he e o woide.  Min, Waids has two  stenmet. T hwt no woeey, and, witer | whoch  Pauke [T - -
Lroutmment  cvmnyw horr Wl e bae by ber feat husband, agwd | oalking sbost some thes, luy down | ther | the o with =/

SR UL ~ U . ety wand 0 years, mbeo Ner | pees e night bn net eagety boses, sy | Desle hoy whe was coming frotn fiae | ERITIAN SUFFREERS TRON

slpnt Mranelds Watss, wnin, | only Tood Navimg Dbeew Cow sesnge [ ooacy, the  talegriph | FPARAQUAY,

whoar wrm ol nos a8 the Bintiek Maspis | Nont sirning 1 went dowyw W S | writien ] —_—

bnd 1 ke Kindues | rreer, hathed, 1 the . Bditers of the “Susedara ™
v hnve 10 rwpost | srsemal, whers | En woew Migliny Me J. V., een

# warde eno exy ' MY, Kelvm sald nhaat i invarine  tses ware st wark Mr. Bien, the | eupd i 4obe,
o rescivwd from @ v Miadasss we bave mel trom every - | faremah se® yer, sad othere, gare me Sestber lad got shot in e S, mod B, ..
Vanbon and all bis tBeurs . sady  Aion wtie dolivery  from  the | & few duilars and elber sasiatano, | thay bandagnd the woand alier making oW,
daring var stay of 3 dey e | gAY W Logwee | After Buoehing sisonr Ser foge Bavs, §] Wi prisoser, | N1
trenmbers vl he Terawwy = Lt wich an Amerioan, M Delield, | On ssasbing the Capllls wo wore ae- | MM :
Ay weening. and suilo ) fiv J JOMN REALES RANRATIVE whe kepit modes Ao hack coammon ( e | seated By 8 Viened  gestivimsan, whe w 4. N
sy dek ) the owe, " Averoig W Ivew Fwunily srrived hen . wil) st | Darned ut e e the Cotnsandersins | o Jobin D
Sare veay goodd L . » oo Amtvnoim o an Erahasat et | we (0 meke & Duose-pons Iubmed | Clipl, Owant A he sshud ne n Mis. M. 2
thank Goul. gelt g o i Nowtle . = loone LT e bomwrte st mels | vory Dard wndder thin ot atn, wathon: | B
abw wll b clibbera aad olbmim st pue | ventasens wee Oom bis baylead, sad | chasge of dotling, and slerpiag o [ work we bed beed. T apoks o Mim |

g -

Tlan



file:///rage*
http://alwo.it

Aseiqn) ysnug ey g8

| i TF

S|

—.qu
v €] r:_-. :




